
Date Published:8 March 2021     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 1.30 pm

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be 
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the last meetings on 18 November 2020 and 20 
January 2021.

Chair

4  WORK PLAN (Pages 25 - 26)

This is the final Committee of this Council term. Members may wish to 
suggest future items for the next Committee to consider.

Chair

5  DISTRICT MEMBER FEEDBACK 

District representatives on the Committee are encouraged to use this 
standing item to feedback on key economic growth points/issues/actions 
from their respective councils.

All

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update on the GEGJC meeting held earlier the same
day from the Chair, Cllr Patrick Molyneux.

Cllr Patrick 
Molyneux

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


    

Please refer to the published forward plan of the GEGJC to suggest any
items you may want to consider at a future meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee.

Scrutiny members are invited to attend the GEGJC meeting in an observer
capacity. Please refer to the following link to view the agenda and
supporting documents for the GEGJC meeting:

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MI
d=10053&Ver=4

7  UPDATE ON THE SKILLS AGENDA (Pages 27 - 58)

To consider the attached presentation and supporting report.

Pete Carr

8  REVIEW OF GROWTH HUB SERVICE (Pages 59 - 74) Sarah Danson
Sam Hoad
Katie Power

INFORMATION ITEMS

9  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT (Pages 75 - 82)

To note an update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director of  
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure on Economic Growth issues in the 
County.

Colin Chick

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

NEXT COUNCIL

9 June 2021
15 September 2021
20 October 2021
17 November 2021

Membership –  Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara Sudbury and 
Cllr Sajid Patel Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr John Murphy, Cllr Gina Blomefield and 
Cllr Simon Pickering

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring 
Officer, (Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior 
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10053&Ver=4
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10053&Ver=4
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10053&Ver=4
mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 18 November 2020 virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair)

Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield
Cllr Simon Pickering

Officers in attendance: Mike Dawson, David Owen, Sophie Benfield, Simon Excell, 
Colin Chick, Angela Presdee and Rupert Waters

Apologies: Cllr Klara Sudbury

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 23 September and 21 October 2020 were 
approved.

5. WORK PLAN 

5.1 The Chair informed members that they had met with officers and the Chair of 
the GEGJC to consider the work plan for the remaining two meetings of this 
Committee. It was noted that March would be the final scrutiny Committee of 
this Council term.

5.2 The attached document was shared with the Committee as a list of potential 
items for the January and March 2021 meetings, items that the Committee 
have previously requested and that officers thought would be timely.

5.3 The Committee approved the list of topics and agreed the Chair would work 
with officers to produce a work plan for the two sessions and share this with 
members.

ACTION: Chair/DSU

7. MODERN METHODS OF HOUSING CONSTRUCTION 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

7.4 The Chair invited Michael Craggs, Development & Asset Management 
Innovation at Bromford, to present this item. Members noted the following 
points from the presentation:

 Slides 2 and 3 gave an overview of the reasons for the introduction of 
modern methods of construction (MMC), it was key to understand that 
these new forms were not to replace traditional construction, but to work 
alongside it and support the traditional market.

 There was a noticeable and growing shortage of skilled construction 
workers. A majority of this trade were now in the 50+ age bracket and the 
current apprenticeships level were not likely to fulfil the level of skilled 
jobs needed to address the current housing shortage.

 Brexit would have a further impact on this due to the uncertainty of 
European workers migrating to work in the industry, plus a potential 
shortage of materials and tariffs on goods coming from abroad.

 Homes England were in Purdah at the moment so were unable to 
comment at this meeting but it was confirmed they had begun to allocate 
funding for MMC houses, which was a really positive step forward for the 
industry.

 The main benefits of using MMC  was: a reduction in wastage (it was 
estimated that 1 in 5 homes were lost to waste using traditional building), 
reduction in carbon use through construction, reduced delivery times  and 
a reduction in skilled labour reliance.

 There were currently 7 types of MMC, Slides 4 and 5 categorised them 
into five groups. Volumetric and Pods were normally used in the 
hotel/leisure industry and panelised systems were the most common 
used in house construction.

 The Volumetric builds were delivered in 2-3 pods, and could be fully fitted 
offsite. It was usual then for the completed pods to be delivered on to site 
when it is two-thirds of the way complete e.g. ground 
works/infrastructure/services completed. There was then a 7 day turn 
around from the day of delivery.

 The MMC Pods on the other hand, tended to come as room pods e.g. 
kitchen or bathroom, they were made in factories and fully fitted and then 
placed into an already completed structure.

 Slide 6 showed a picture of a Legal and General factory in Leicestershire,  
they produced 3,500 units at peak.

 Slides 7-9 showed examples of various MMC products delivered in 
Gloucestershire. The Timber Volumetric construction tended to be the 
more favoured MMC option for residential – the speed of construction 
was estimated about half the time of a traditional site and was not labour 
or skill reliant, but pre-planning of the site infrastructure is essential.

 There were a growing number of MMC manufacturers and suppliers 
available now, estimated about 140+ companies. There was therefore a 
lot of choice so it was absolutely essential that housing providers had an 
evaluation framework and process, which could then be altered to 
address and weight the different requirements of particular local 
authorities, planners or sites.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 There had been a lot of conversation around quality assurance for these 
builds. BOPAS were the Build Offsite Property Assurance Scheme which 
tend to be the standard warranty provider for MMC. They normally 
offered a  6 year warranty, but providers were now beginning to ask for 
more assurance, e.g. 25 years.

 NHBC in the last 12 months had also begun to support MMC builds which 
had been really welcomed by providers.

 As previously mentioned, Homes England have had a massive shift 
towards supporting MMC, considering that 5 years ago it was not on their 
agenda. Slide 14 outlined some of their recent commitments, including 
pledging to support at least 25% of new homes to be MMC.

 It was noted that MMC was slightly more expensive at the moment, but 
this could be put down to the wide choice on the market, no investment 
was going into one area.

 Another key priority for the MMC agenda needed to be ensuring new 
homes were retrofit ready e.g. ready to fit solar panels, battery storage 
and moving away from gas use, making sure new homes were ready to 
receive these changes, rather than having to go back and carry out a lot 
of work and expense retrofitting.

 The final slide offered questions for future consideration on this issue.

7.2 Members particularly noted the cost implications of MCC at the moment and 
there was a lengthy discussion about what scale Gloucestershire would need 
to reach before MMC’s would become financially beneficial.

7.3 It was advised that MMC came out at present at about 10% more and there 
was a level of uncertainty and risk around delivery and payments. As with 
everything, once you start to get some economy of scale, the cost would 
begin to come down, potentially not significantly but the other benefits may 
outweigh this.

7.4 A manufacturer would need about 250 units through the factory per annum 
to breakeven.  The problem being at the moment, there were too many small 
factories trying to serve a relatively small market. It was likely that 
purchasers will start to favour particular manufacturers which will draw down 
the needed economies of scale.

7.5 Bromford for example as a registered housing provider would be looking to 
partner with a particular manufacturer to deliver its MMC quota, and build 
reliance to deliver in the long term. It was not thought a provider would begin 
to see economy of scale for a few years. The better Gloucestershire got at 
designing and producing MMC builds, the quicker it would likely begin to see 
the financial reductions

7.6 Considering the economic benefits of using MMC, it was noted that MMC 
factories did not need a lot of employees to run. If a factory were brought to 
Gloucestershire, it would like only need around 20 employees so the industry 
was not a big employer per se. However from a supply chain perspective, it 
would certainly help increase the developments sustainability to be 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

producing locally. There have been examples of manufactures producing 
‘pop up’ factories to support a particular scheme over a set timeframe.

7.7 It was acknowledged that there was nervousness about the long term quality 
of MMC housing. In response, it was advised that England were only just 
starting to touch base with this industry and not many registered providers 
had delivered anything in scale yet, it was largely still an untested territory. 

7.8 The nervousness however was impacting the ability of providers to get 
funders on board at this stage; the providers were the ones being left with a 
lot of the financial risk which was not a usual situation.

7.9 It was advised that customers wouldn’t expect to see any changes in repair 
timescales/costs compared to traditional builds. The things that normally 
need repairs such as a kitchen or bathroom still occur the same.

7.10 Regarding retrofitting housing, it was advised that was no difference 
adapting MMC to traditional builds, but they were potentially more 
convenient as some of the construction could be done offsite by removing 
the pod, for example.

7.11 It was stressed at this point that it was vital for MMC manufacturers to be on 
board with the carbon neutral adaptions that our future housing will need and 
therefore produce structures ready to take these changes when needed.

7.12 A member asked for clarity on the role of Homes England. It was reiterated 
that they were absolutely beginning to support and fund the delivery of MMC. 
There was an expectation that all of Homes England’s wave two providers 
(Bromford being one of those) would deliver 25% of MMC housing going 
forward. It appreciated that MMC was part, but not all, of the solution to the 
UK’s housing needs.

ACTION: Share further information regarding Homes England and MMC

7.13 It was added that Gloucestershire was very much a growing place. In its 
existing plans alone between 2011 and 2031 we were looking to deliver 
61,000 new homes, and if you project that 2041, this could be an additional 
33,000. 

7.14 In response to a question on any additional risk or reduction in quality using 
MMC builds, it was advised that there was some scepticism around using the 
MMC but this had potentially come from an over scrutiny of the sector, which 
you never really saw with traditional methods. In regards to the warranty, 
providers could push for 100 years but it was unlikely we will be asking the 
same questions of construction in 100 years time, 75 years would be 
sufficient.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

7.15 In conclusion, it was agreed that the Committee would welcome inviting 
some local manufacturers/developers to a future meeting to understand what 
their views were.

ACTION: Produce questions potential questions

4. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

The Chair invited Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), to present this item, giving the Committee an 
update on the morning’s meeting and Members noted the following points:

 There was a presentation on Gloucestershire’s skills agenda from the LEP. 
The Committee heard about the new skills portal which brought together all 
national and local support for projects on skills into one place. This had been 
produced by collaborating with skills leads from across the districts. GCC 
had provided substantial funding towards this and worked alongside the LEP 
on delivering this project. Members were encouraged to visit the website and 
feedback on its content/nature: www.skillsportalglos.com.

 The portal included information on careers advice, retraining and upskilling, 
apprenticeships, support for individuals and businesses facing redundancies, 
and delivery of the digital and cyber skills learning programmes.

 All of these proposals would form part of the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy 
and monitored by the Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel, which report 
into the LEP Board and GEGJC.

 There was a very exciting presentation on the Kings Quarter Regeneration 
project in the heart of Gloucester. It was noted how great it was to see so 
many projects like this around the county all following similar themes 
(cyber/digital) and moving at a considerable pace.

 The project would aim to be carbon neutral in its running and would look into 
how to mitigate and offset carbon during its construction. The buildings 
would be sustainable and the development also included the largest green 
wall in the South West.

 An update on the local plans and the key delivery projects around the 
county.

 Strategic planning statement of common ground was still being worked on 
and would be brought to the GEGJC meeting in January (additional date on 
20 January 2021).

 The Business Rates pool item included a match funding request, which was 
approved, for the LEP to run until March 2023.

6. DISTRICT MEMBER FEEDBACK 

The Committee noted the following updates:

6.1 Cllr Paul McCloskey – Cheltenham Borough Council

Page 5

http://www.skillsportalglos.com/
https://www.ahr.co.uk/King's-Quarter


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

The Council had recently approved the Minster Innovation Exchange 
development to begin, after being awarded £3.114m funding through the 
LEP’s ‘Getting Building Fund’. 

The full report can be found at the following link: 
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/documents/g3263/Public%20reports%
20pack%2016th-Nov-2020%2016.00%20Council.pdf?T=10

It was offered if the Committee would like further detail on this project, the 
member could enquire.

6.2 Cllr Simon Pickering – Stroud District Council

The Member reiterated the information in the Director’s report later in the 
agenda that the Council had recently received a successful Heritage Lottery 
Bid for canal restoration (opening up the cancel from Thrupp through to 
Sharpness at Saul Junction). This work would have a positive impact on 
tourism, employment and economic development for the District and County 
as a whole. 
It is also applying for the One Public Estate government grant, and working 
GCC and the LEP to locate land within the district that could be developed 
into housing.

The Chair thanked members for their feedback and encouraged others to 
continue using this opportunity.

8. GFIRST LEP ITEM 

The Chair invited David Owen, Chief Executive of the GFirst LEP, to present this 
report. Members noted the following:

 The LEP thought it would be useful to see the latest economic data that had 
been produced and circulated regularly throughout the pandemic.

 Members were reminded that when the LEP started their recovery planning 
earlier in year, the forecasting showed a GVA hit for Gloucestershire’s 
economy anywhere in-between 9-29%  (between £400m-£1.2b per quarter),  
the job loss for the county would be expected between 26-29,000 and 
recovery would begin somewhere between Quarter 3 2022 and Quarter 3 
2023.

 The latest data set showed:
o A drop in the claimant count for September; 
o Youth employment had started to become more of a worry, nearly 

20% of claimants in the county were young people;
o Job postings were getting better but still had a long way to improve 

back to pre-Covid levels;
o The total number of furloughed workers at 31 August 2020 was 

30,700. They would expect to see a steady increase in the next few 
months due to lockdown 2.

Page 6

https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/documents/g3263/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Nov-2020%2016.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/documents/g3263/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-Nov-2020%2016.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://www.local.gov.uk/one-public-estate-and-land-release-fund-prospectus


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

o Gloucestershire businesses had to date claimed £483m in Bounce 
Back Loans from the Government which was quite a significant risk; 
and

o Gloucestershire was currently showing in the lowest risk category in 
terms of Covid impact and recovery and therefore in the most resilient 
category.

 The LEP were really pleased to be working with GCC to launch the skills 
portal which was going to be really important in the New Year. 

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 15:20.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Future item suggestions

Modern methods of construction: 

 Following the presentation today, it could be an option to continue this for another 2 Committee meetings, focusing on 
different aspects:

o November meeting: registered housing providers/affordable housing sector
o January: private sector – invite the LEP Construction and Infrastructure Group
o March: speak to manufacturers in the industry

 The Committee may then want to consider some recommendations to GEGJC following this piece of work. 

Update on the county’s Growth Hub service:
 What the model is in each area
 How the different tiers of service work and interact with each other
 What are the costs
 Are there any improvements that could be made

Local housing provision:

 Mike Dawson presented a report to the GEGJC Committee this morning – is there anything the Committee want to 
pick up on here?

Skills agenda:

 Pete Carr gave an update presentation on this to the GEGJC Committee this morning, is there anything the 
Committee want to pick up on here?

Social mobility (to include the Power of 3)

P
age 1

M
inute Item

 5

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 20 January 2021 virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans

Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr John Murphy

Officers in attendance: Mike Dawson, David Owen, Sophie Benfield, Simon Excell, 
Colin Chick, Steve Mawson, Angela Presdee, Rupert Waters 
and Mally Findlater

Apologies: Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Gina Blomefield and Cllr Simon 
Pickering

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

3. MINUTES 

Members were advised that the minutes had not yet been finalised ready for 
publication in time for the meeting. These would therefore be considered at the 
Committee meeting in March.

4. WORK PLAN 

4.1 Members noted the scheduled items for the March 2021 meeting and the 
Chair requested any suggestions for future consideration. It was confirmed 
that any suggestions now would be added to the future items list for the new 
Committee, after the May 2021 elections, to consider if they wished.

4.2 It was suggested that the next Committee may wish to look at an item on the 
Additional Restrictions Grant (discretionary scheme) which formed part of 
central Government’s Covid response support package for businesses.

5. DISTRICT MEMBER FEEDBACK 

Members noted that Gloucester City Council were due to consider a constitutional 
change to outline a formal feedback procedure for membership to outside bodies 
back to the rest of the City Council members. This would therefore cover district 
membership to this Committee and improve the communication between GCC 
scrutiny and district councils.

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

6. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

6.1 The Chair invited Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Chair of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), to present this item and 
Members noted the following points:

 GEGJC members had recognised the importance of developing a digital 
strategy for the County, which was separate to the Cyber Central project 
but ran alongside it.

 The overall direction of the draft Statement of Common Ground was 
agreed and the Committee asked the Senior Officer Group to have a 
more detailed look at the content. A final version would then be shared 
back with GEGJC for agreement.

 The GCC Covid-19 recovery action plan had now been costed and would 
be considered at Cabinet on 27 January 2021. It included a funding 
request of £500k per annum to drive the areas identified for action. The 
situation remained very fluid with many areas remaining in response 
mode; however the Committee were satisfied with the progress made so 
far towards recovery.

 The County’s S151 Officer Group had been considering options for 
pooling some of the Additional Restrictions Grant (Discretionary scheme), 
which formed part of central Government’s Covid support package to 
businesses. The group had since received notification from MHCLT that 
they could only pull grant applications for one of the proposed ideas 
(helping SMEs online). The Committee therefore stressed that these 
discretionary funds needed to be used in the most effective way for the 
businesses that really needed the support to make it through the 
pandemic.

 Members approved two SEDF funding requests; one for the City Region 
Board and the other for Cyber and Digital Growth in Gloucestershire.

 On the forward plan, there was a request for an update on the initial 
impacts of Brexit in the county. 

6.2 Due to the very strong interest of GCC, the district councils and this scrutiny 
committee in digital connectivity, a member queried whether the 
development of the digital strategy would be a good piece of work for 
scrutiny to become involved in. 

6.3 It was advised that the action taken away from this morning’s meeting was 
for the Senior Officer Group to do some further work on identifying what this 
strategy would look like, there was still quite a bit of work to be done first, but 
this Committee would definitely be involved at some point in that process. 

6.4 It was reinforced that this strategy needed to run alongside but separately to 
the development of Cyber Central as it went a lot wider than just Cyber. The 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Govt. digital strategy for example, contained 7 different strands, one of which 
was about cyber security. There were 6 other strands focused on the wider 
issues of digital.

6.5 Noting members were due to discuss the governance of the GFirst LEP later 
in this meeting, it was questioned what the governance arrangements and 
relationship with scrutiny were for the new City Region Board. Members 
understood that it had now started to play a role in making significant 
decisions and spending public money and were therefore keen to be very 
clear about the transparency and scrutiny of its functions.

6.6 In response, members noted that the City Region Board was a partnership 
that was established by Leadership Gloucestershire and compromised all the 
districts, GCC, the LEP, the University and wide range of partners to 
coordinate activity in terms of growth of the county as a single functioning 
economic unit. At this stage the Board had only met once so it would 
potentially be better for scrutiny to become involved when the Board was 
more established.

6.7 In terms of its decision making powers and access to funding, it was advised 
that it was a partnership rather than a statutory committee that had power 
designated to it, which meant it was unable to make any decisions as a 
collective, and any decisions made needed to come from one of its partners. 
Likewise with any funding bids, these would need to be sponsored by one of 
the partners as a formal body, on behalf of the Board. Its aim was to provide 
a forum in terms of Gloucestershire’s overall economic growth, coordination 
of activity and contribution to bodies such as Western Gateway.

6.8 Officers suggested that the best way to involve scrutiny at this early stage 
would be to make the Committee one of the consultees on the developing 
prospectus, which will govern the work and governance arrangements for the 
Board going forward. 

ACTION: Steve Mawson/Mike Dawson

6.9 The Chair confirmed that this Committee should have an active role in 
understanding the relationship between the different economic growth bodies 
in the county (Western Gateway, Leadership Gloucestershire and the City 
Region Board), how they all work together, coordinated and were governed.

6.10 A question was posed, in relation to the Cyber Central development, that 
given the current circumstances of most office based companies working 
from home, should the project be exploring the fundamental question of 
whether the physical presence of the Cyber Central development in terms of 
office space etc. had now become outdated.

6.11 Officers recognised this was a very valid point in terms of how our office 
working had changed due to the pandemic. It was understood however from 
ongoing local and national data that post-Covid, companies were likely to 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

return to a blended approach of online and in-person working. The hub being 
developed at Cyber Central offered an opportunity for companies to work 
and operate from the same space, as well as mixing with others in their 
sector. Without this development, Gloucestershire as a whole currently had a 
woeful supply of good quality office space to offer.

6.12 Referencing the development of the Statement of Common Ground, a 
member noted a comment about the Leadership Board and its involvement 
in this process. It was questioned how this Committee could scrutinise the 
work of this Board.

6.13 Members noted that this was an informal group that came together to 
discuss the Statement. It was made up of the leaders and lead members for 
planning at all six councils, and simply provided an opportunity to discuss 
and make amendments to the Statement. The actual adoption of the 
Statement, once finalised, would need to be done by the individual councils 
themselves, it was only being coordinated by the GEGJC. It would therefore 
lead that each councils own scrutiny function would consider the implications 
of the Statement.

6.14 Again in light of the Covid impacts on businesses, a member questioned how 
we would be adapting and developing the Growth Hub offer to take account 
of these changes. Officers advised that the offer continued to evolve all the 
time. Not only will changes come from the pandemic impacts, but also as the 
Hubs work with new and different business and trend changes in society. 
The big opportunity now was for the Hubs to provide that flexible working 
space previously discussed.

6.15 Members heard that there were a whole host of mechanisms in place to 
make sure information was being shared across the Hub network, and also 
back to the governance Boards to ensure the projects were performing how 
expected. It was highlighted that the Committee were due to consider an 
item on Growth Hub Governance in March.

7. SOCIAL MOBILITY 

7.1 This item included two separate reports; the Chair first introduced Jon 
McGinty, Managing Director of Gloucester City Council, to give an update on 
the social mobility group work. Members viewed a presentation (copy 
attached) and noted the following points:

 There was no universally accepted definition of what we mean by social 
mobility. In overall terms, we would describe it as making sure everyone 
had an opportunity to build a good life for themselves regardless of their 
background or every individual having a fair chance of reaching their 
potential.

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

 Whilst it was generally accepted that some level of social mobility had a 
positive impact on society, there was also no universally accepted 
benchmark to measure against in terms of how much was good or bad.

 It was widely acknowledged by society that unfortunately where you start 
in life still had a big impact on where you ended up e.g. in terms of your 
income, class or geography.

 The Social Mobility Commission was a non-departmental public agency 
of Govt. which had been created under the Life Chances Act 2010.

 In 2017, the Commission produced a report, Social Mobility in Great 
Britain which, for the first time, defined a list of 16 indicators to measure 
social mobility which they used to rank every local authority area in the 
UK.

 The report showed that only one area in Gloucestershire (Stroud) ranked 
within the top 20% of authorities for having good social mobility. Three 
areas in the county ranked in the bottom 20%.

 Following a meeting of Leadership Gloucestershire in 2018, it was agreed 
that a task group would be set up to look into these findings. A group was 
formed which included representatives from across the county’s 
authorities and organisations. 

 The first slide showed a brief timeline of the work that was undertook. It 
was noted however that the progress was slow as all participants were 
doing so in addition to their normal job.

 Between 2019-2020 the group carried out various pieces of analysis and 
research, including visiting other areas of the country that had some 
success in tackling aspects of social mobility.

 Towards the end of 2019, the group were able to secure some resource 
in the form of a researcher from GCC to start an initial review of all the 
indicators, with a view of then narrowing in on a smaller set of indicators 
where the group would carry out a deep dive and produce some 
recommendations.

 In early 2020, following this initial review, the group agreed to focus on 
the following three areas:

o Early years interventions and activities;
o Key Stage 3 issues in educational terms; and
o Youth, and progress to higher educational phases.

 Unfortunately, the group met on 11 March 2020 which was when Covid 
hit and the work had not progressed since then. The researcher from 
GCC was a public health officer so that support was also lost.

 In September 2020, the Commission produced a new report (The Long 
Shadow of Deprivation) which looked at social mobility from a different 
angle, following where an individual’s average earnings had reached 10-
20 years after they left education.

Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/social-mobility-commission
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-mobility-in-great-britain-state-of-the-nation-2018-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-mobility-in-great-britain-state-of-the-nation-2018-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-long-shadow-of-deprivation-differences-in-opportunities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-long-shadow-of-deprivation-differences-in-opportunities


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

 This new report however did not show any areas in Gloucestershire as 
being within the least socially mobile areas, and actually identified the 
Cotswolds as being one of the most socially mobile areas in the country, 
when it had previously ranked within the bottom 20%.

 The task group shared their initial research with the Commission late last 
year and had now been asked to join a group of local authorities to start 
some joined up work across the country post-Covid.

 It remained their ambition to bring a full report back to Leadership 
Gloucestershire as soon as this was viable.

7.2 The Committee thanked Jon for the detailed and very interesting update on 
work done so far.

7.3 It was questioned whether the impact of a reduction in youth work and youth 
support had been noticed in the initial research. It was advised that the group 
needed to gather more data to approve or deny this statement, but it was 
certainly something they anecdotally could see having an impact.

7.4 Looking back at the RAG rating against the 16 indicators from the first 
Commission report, members were advised that there were a lot of red 
indicators in early years i.e. we were aware that there were a number of 
children in the county had not reached a good level of development by the 
time they started primary school. 

7.5 The indicators then improved at primary school level, which would reflect the 
fact that most primary schools in the county had good or outstanding Ofsted 
ratings. The red indicators then returned when reaching secondary school 
and youth age groups.

7.6 Welcoming the research to date, a member questioned what the next stage 
was, and how the group planned to go from useful and interesting research 
into something that became transformational for our communities. In 
response, the Committee noted that the group were very focused on making 
sure this was a data driven piece of work to give as much weight to the 
resulting recommendations as possible. It would be key to reinstate a 
researcher to continue the deeper dive into the three identified areas. 

7.7 The group appreciated that if there was a simple answer to this, it would 
have been found by now so they expected the outcomes of this research to 
be very complex, but with some easier more immediate actions that could be 
taken as well. These recommendations would then be fed back to the 
membership of Leadership Gloucestershire to take forward.

7.8 On the topic of selective grammar schools in the county, it was queried 
whether the scope would cover such fundamental questions such as the 

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

effectiveness of selective schooling on social mobility. In response, members 
noted that one of the representatives on the group was a head teacher from 
one of the grammar schools, who had reported their shock at the small 
number of children at the local primary schools that had aspirations to go to 
one of the county’s grammar schools.

ACTION: Share data discussed at the meeting

7.9 An officer comment reinforced that even though this issue started with the 
word ‘social’ it was actually really couched in the success of the economy 
and making sure that every resident was able to benefit from and contribute 
to the success of their own economy. Noting this, it was suggested that the 
group may want to make a bid to the SEDF for their researcher resource.

7.10 The next presentation was received from an organisation called the Power of 
3. The Committee were joined by Dawn Barnes (Secretary of the Matson, 
Robinswood and White City Community Partnership), Bob Allen (Chair of the 
Matson, Robinswood and White City Community Partnership) and Dr Iain 
Riddell (advisor/consultant of the partnership). The Committee noted the 
following points from their presentation:

 The Partnership started as a council initiative in the early 2000 and 
enabled the communities to coordinate a number of civic society groups 
and a legacy of community activity, whilst also having a place to discuss 
issues and opportunities.

 In 2015/16 the Partnership received a small Govt. grant which enabled 
them to produce a local community economic plan focused on social 
mobility and people’s wellbeing. The plan brought three very distinct 
communities together, Matson, Robinswood and White City in 
Gloucester. It became known as the Power of 3.

 Slide 4 outlined the first phase of the Power of Three which included aims 
such as changing how others in the City and the County looked upon the 
three communities and more importantly, how the communities saw 
themselves.

 An example of the Partnership’s early work was an awards evening 
celebrating what was good in the communities, what residents gave to 
the estate and to each other.

 Following a successful rollout of phase 1 priorities, the Partnership 
refocused their efforts from 2019 to phase 2 (detailed on slide 5).

 The first priority focused on acknowledging the fact that the communities 
had a wealth of skills, which were often unrecognised and undervalued, 
as well as many residents only able to live day to day financially and 
being time poor. The Partnership wanted to provide more doorstep 
opportunities for training and development.

Page 17



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

 The second focused on regeneration, which was seen as more than just 
about homes, but about parks, open spaces and the opportunities that 
came with it. It recognised that it was the residents of the communities 
who were the stakeholders of regenerations in their areas.

 Thirdly, the Partnership were very aware and not shying away from the 
challenging future in respect of climate change. All of its flagship projects 
would aim to pave the way for how development can still be done in a 
carbon neutral environment. It recognised however the need for a joined 
up policy approach to raising money for retrofitting and restoring existing 
housing stock and community buildings.

 The fourth priority recognised that many community projects across the 
ward were not seen for the assets that they were. This social imbalance 
had been massively brought to the forefront by Covid and had enabled 
the Partnership to hit the ground running in responding and providing that 
community support throughout the pandemic.

 It was stressed that community organisations were often left fire fighting 
to keep their doors open due to being left out of commissioning and 
funding opportunities. It was felt frustrating and counter productive for 
groups who knew what they were doing worked for their community, 
having to change the way they did things just to meet different funding 
criteria bids. For sustained change, communities needed longer term 
investment.

 The fifth priority was based around the knowledge that when people were 
actively involved in their community, it made them stronger.

 Finally, it was recognised that children from poorer backgrounds had 
worse educational attainment and completed education significantly 
disadvantaged to others. This also referenced how digital exclusion had 
been magnified tenfold by Covid and it was vital to address this.

 The final slide focused on the concept of Social Capital.
 Similar to the data presented in the first part of this item, the Partnership 

had worked through a number of statistics to try and understand the 
social mobility impacts in data form at ward level.

 It was learnt, among other things, that the primary schools in the ward, 
did not have enough spaces for all of the children inside the ward. In 
addition, the level of free school meal uptake was heavily condensed 
inside the ward’s primary schools as opposed to elsewhere in the City.

 What this showed therefore was if parents in the ward could afford to do 
so, had access to a car etc. they were following a social mobility agenda 
in terms of taking their child to schools outside the ward.

 The county should be mindful of the relationship between social mobility 
and its understanding of Adverse Childhood Experiences. Areas in these 
wards were likely to experience cycles of poverty that families would go 

Page 18



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

through generation after generation. It was this passage of complex 
situations that undermined resident’s ability to take part in social mobility 
that needed to be addressed.

 Research showed that economic opportunity was thwarted by a lack of 
knowledge and understanding. It was vital therefore that when councils 
were think through policies to assist residents to reach economic 
potential, that it was not a generic ‘one size fits’ countywide model but 
very specific approaches for individual areas. 

 Because of the way the economics in the ward were structured, the 
Partnership were aware that there was a low number of residents who 
had higher education qualifications, which transpired into a low level of 
high skilled jobs. Schools in the ward therefore needed to be mindful that 
a career talk on high skilled jobs would not be enough on its own to 
support children in understanding and navigating the avenues to reach 
the higher skills and qualifications needed.

 An example was given of the Partnership trying to organise for a group of 
children and young people to visit the University of Gloucestershire’s art 
department during the summer holidays to understand what university life 
might be like, and where a career in arts might take them. Unfortunately 
this concept never went anywhere due to a lack of understanding of the 
purpose behind it. The Partnership were now exploring other avenues.

7.11 It was questioned whether the Partnership had any initiatives related to 
numeracy skills, which was acknowledged to be one of the main barriers for 
moving into many career paths. It was advised that the Partnership did not 
have any after school work clubs in the community as this was part of a 
broader issue about effective engagement between the local schools and the 
community needs. 

7.12 Reference was also made to the increased pressure on parents, due to the 
need to emergency home school during the pandemic, of understanding and 
being able to support their children when they themselves may lack the skill 
levels to do so. It was mentioned earlier that there was a real need for adult 
education provisions in the wards, like community colleges used to serve, 
but this had to be something that would fit with the reality of being a parent 
working full time etc.

7.13 A member asked how the Partnership measured their work. It was noted that 
producing data at a ward level was not easy and it would be much better if 
they had a baseline to work from first, but this remained a challenge. They 
do however work closely with Gloucester Gateway Trust as the ward was 
one the Trust’s target areas. The Trust carried out an annual survey of their 
areas which helped give the Partnership an idea of progress and the 
direction they were moving in.

Page 19



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

7.14 It was suggested that social mobility in the past had been seen to increase 
when society experienced episodes that disrupted the normal process. It 
may therefore be that the current pandemic had a positive impact in the long 
terms on some aspects such as the lack of school examinations. This may 
mean businesses in the future could refocus on who they want to employ, 
rather than relying on examination certificates. 

7.15 Members acknowledged that cross-county communication of similar 
community groups was vital. Sharing knowledge and experience between 
different wards would avoid duplicating work loads and community groups 
forming a much stronger base. This cross working also needed to include 
county partners such as GCC, the LEP and the City Region Board.

8. LOCAL HOUSING 

8.1 Mike Dawson, Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group, advised members 
that the attached report was an annual update which drew together states of 
play across all districts in terms of strategic plan positions and future 
developments, covering a wide range of issues from housing to transport. It 
was the same report that the GEGJC considered at their last meeting so 
members were mindful some of the information may be out of date.

8.2 The Committee noted the report, but it was highlighted that the table under 
7.1 of the report was now incorrect due to the newly issued housing numbers 
from Government. 

9. TAXI LICENSING TASK GROUP REPORT 

9.1 Cllr Kate Haigh, as Chair of the Taxi Licensing Task Group, introduced the 
report and members noted the following points:

 The task group was set up by this Committee and the report had been 
considered at the GEGJC meeting this morning. As scrutiny would 
normally consider task group reports first, members of the GEGJC were 
aware that if there were any comments or amendments coming out of this 
meeting, it would be fed back to them before any recommendations were 
acted on.

 As taxi and vehicle licensing in the county was a responsibility of the 
district council, the GEGJC seemed the most appropriate platform for the 
recommendations to be presented, as all the leaders of the districts were 
members of the GEGJC and could therefore take the recommendations 
back to their respective council. There were some recommendations that 
came within GCC’s responsibility so this report would also be presented 
to Cabinet the following week.

 The task group had some very wide ranging discussions as taxi and 
vehicle licensing affected a number of areas, not just the licensing 

Page 20



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

aspects and these were always considered in a Gloucestershire-wide 
context.

 The ambition of the task group arose from the economic contribution of in 
the taxi and licensing trade and the potential major impacts of changes 
coming through the system on how that trade worked in the future, for 
example, app based private hire.

 District councils were within their right to have different approaches to 
how they manage this process but there was experience around the 
country of some authorities who suffered from neighbouring authorities 
having different standards for example, allowing licenses where they had 
been revoke under another local authority, but drivers returning to 
operate in the town/city where they had been disqualified.

 There were increasing examples in other parts of the country where 
drivers were working in larger cities that were sometimes thousands of 
miles away from where they had been awarded their license.

 The group tried to adopt a medium pressure approach across the areas 
considered, in order to not disadvantage the more rural areas who 
suffered different impacts compared to the urban towns.

 An example was given here of the inevitable move to electric vehicles 
within the trade that may have a bigger impact in our rural communities 
who already suffered from a lack of availability.

 The recommendation for all authorities to sign up to the NR3 offered a 
really good tool for licensing officers to see if there were any red flags 
when considering new drivers for licenses.

 The group hoped these recommendations were a good step to having a 
joined up approach across the county that would benefit our economy 
and residents.

9.2 Another member of the task group informed the Committee that the work 
undertaken really highlighted to the differing challenges across our urban 
and rural areas, and also the need to take some of the existing initiatives 
even further, such as disability access and electric vehicle take up. It was 
also appreciated that all of these changes cost drivers money, which made it 
difficult to invest in if they operated in a low level activity area.

9.3 In addition, it was viewed that as a society, we do undervalue the cost of 
travel. We tend to make a comparison with travelling in a private car and 
assume a taxi trade should be operating at a small multiplier of that. But 
when you add up all the costs of transport, it simply was not viable for the 
trade to do so. We needed to better appreciate that transport should reflect 
the true cost of travel, including all environmental and safety factors. It was 
felt that the task group meetings alone had moved towards greater 
cooperation across the county in this area.

Page 21



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

9.4 At this morning’s GEGJC meeting, it was agreed that the Chief Executives 
from all six districts would identify a senior officer to support the licensing 
group in exploring these recommendations, recognising that if they were 
going to be implemented, there was a need for senior support to do so. At 
member level, this was the first example of a piece of cross-county work in 
this area which was very positive.

9.5 The Committee approved for the report to go forward to the districts to 
explore the recommendations.

10. GOVERNANCE OF THE LEP 

10.1 David Owen, Chief Executive of the GFirst LEP, took the report as read and 
added that the LEP had enjoyed a really excellent relationship with GCC as 
the Accountable Body for a number of years now. It effectively ensures the 
money of the LEP Board was being spent in the right way, and the Section 
151 officer now attended the LEP Board meeting which was a positive step. 

10.2 It was relatively unusual for LEP’s to have the level of engagement we have 
in Gloucestershire through different bodies such as the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, the City Region Board and Leadership Gloucestershire. This had a 
really positive impact on cross working throughout the county and allowed 
the LEP to have early understanding and engagement on economic growth 
issues.

10.3 A member raised concern regarding a project that had been awarded EU 
funding facilitated by the LEP that had not delivered what it had set out to. It 
was reassured that the LEP held all of its projects to account monthly, 
quarterly and annually in great detail, right from the beginning. The member 
was asked to contact the officer offline to look further into the specific project 
they were concerned about. The programme management group also met 
very regularly and a lot of its work focused on holding projects to account 
and dealing with any arising issues.

ACTION: Mally Findlater

Post meeting note: Following the meeting the member emailed the LEP 
with the details of the project she was asking about. It was confirmed that 
this was one funded under the EAFRD strand of ESIF funding. In this strand, 
the LEP has a very limited role in commenting on the strategic fit and value 
for money of projects that come forward for consideration. They do not 
select, fund or monitor any projects thereafter. This is done by MHCLG. 
Contact details were provided.

10.4 LEP officers asked for the Committee to provide a direction on what they 
would like to look into on this topic as there was a plethora of information that 
could be shared. The Chair confirmed that an executive summary would be 
useful on how the LEP performed over the last financial year with its 
allocated funding.

Page 22



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 13 -

10.5 A member advised that a growing concern among many was the concept of 
ethical investing (which manifested itself in a philosophy called Economic 
Social Governance) i.e. people did not want their money being investment in 
fossil fuels for example. It was questioned whether this issue was on the 
LEP’s radar in terms of their partnership in projects and also encouraging 
other businesses in Gloucestershire to do the same.

10.6 In response, members noted that the LEP did not hold any money or directly 
invest any itself. The funding from Govt. for projects was held by the 
Accountable Body. The Board was however actively looking into how its 
decision making, and its ability to influence other businesses making their 
decisions, could be improved by further knowledge and understanding of the 
impacts. Going forward, this work would help better inform the LEP to make 
ethically and environmentally sound decisions.

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

11.1 The Committee noted that given the magnitude of the recent flood events in 
the county (over the 2020 festive period), the flood team at GCC responded 
incredibly well and were then non-stop right through January as well, due to 
the increased need for gritting afterwards.  

11.2 The flooding experienced was of a very different nature to what 
Gloucestershire normally had as it resulted from surface water run off, not 
fluvial flooding from overflowing rivers. Four weeks worth of rain for that time 
of year fell in 24 hours, on top of some of the wettest months beforehand, 
meaning the ground was just too saturated to absorb anymore rainfall. The 
team were currently building up a database of where the flooding happened, 
to look at how and where they could carry out improvements for the future. 
This would not however provide an easy or predictable solution for the future 
due to the ‘perfect storm’ circumstances that were at play and the fact the 
flooding was largely due to surface water run-off which with the right 
conditions can occur almost anywhere.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 16:00.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2021

10 March 2021
Final meeting of this Council

Skills agenda

GFirst LEP Item
Review of Growth Hub Service

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Future of the high street post-Covid 4 Impact of potential future lockdowns or 
pandemics on the economy

2 Covid impact on employment and businesses in 
the County

5 Modern Methods of Construction – 
speaking to manufacturers and the 
private housing market

3 Carbon neutral transport

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Skills update for GCC Economic 

Scrutiny Committee, 

March 2021

Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills, GFirst LEP

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Overview

• Actions to support Gloucestershire economic 
recovery

• Workstreams more focused on young people 

• Workstreams more focused on over 50s

• Q & A

P
age 28



Actions to support Gloucestershire 

economic recovery

4 main workstreams

• Information and signposting

• Apprenticeships

• Unemployment/redundancy support

• Cyber County - Digital and cyber skills

Supported by members of Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel, co-
ordinated by LEP and GCC and implemented by partner organisations

See February 2021 update of Action Plan for Employment and Skills for 
detail and progress

P
age 29



Links with GCC recovery workstreams/groups 

GCC and GFirst LEP working together on:

Employment and Skills aspects of the GCC Recovery Strategy and Action 
Plan 

Employment and Skills sub-group set up and operating, incl. staff across 
GCC leading on adult education, apprenticeships, economic 
development, inclusive employment, library service, procurement. 
Funding of £100k from GCC plus a further £100k from the CCG.

Initial priorities are: 

• social value/sustainable procurement to build jobs and training into 
contracts

• Improved co-ordination of local and national employment and skills 
‘ecosystem’ in Gloucestershire to provide an integrated service for 
the benefit of all the community to support people into work

P
age 30



Workstreams more focused on young 

people
Careers Hub – www.gloscareershub.com/ working with 43 schools on 8 
Gatsby Benchmarks, colleges and alternative provision settings incl. 
improved Labour Market Information (LMI), Careers Coach Career Coach 
Gloucestershire , virtual work encounters and experience

Employment initiatives with DWP/Jobcentre Plus – Kickstart, Youth Hubs

Construction – The Forum Academy, Quayside House in Gloucester; Golden 
Valley and housing developments in Cheltenham

Cyber and digital – expanding HE provision, work in schools, Cirencester 
College digital skills centre, Institutes of Technology, CYNAM

NEETs – ESF-funded project managed by Prospect Training Services

Child-Friendly Gloucestershire – ‘Transition to FE/HE and work’

P
age 31



Workstreams more focused on over 50s

• Skills Portal - For employment, redundancy and skills support please 
visit www.skillsportalglos.com

• Redundancy taskforce - incl. Adviza, DWP, District ED leads, unions, 
employment agencies, training providers

• Employment initiatives e.g. National - Restart, Local – GEM and 
Workstart projects

• Sector-based initiatives e.g. Sector-based work academies (SWAPs) 
with DWP, employers and training providers incl. agri-tech, advanced 
engineering and manufacturing, cyber and digital incl. Digital 
Bootcamps bid with Institute of Coding, green/renewables/retrofit

P
age 32



Q  & A

For any questions/follow-up after the meeting please contact 
peter.carr@gfirstlep.com

Thank you

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 1 of 23 
 

Action Plan for Employment and Skills in Gloucestershire – Feb 2021 update 

Information and Signposting 

Ref Source Workstream Objective  Actions Who When RAG Progress 

1.1 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Information  
and signposting  
-  LMI 

Labour Market Information - 
Up-to-date managed LMI that 
uses best national and local 
resources 
 
L, Cov 
 
(L= long-term requirement,  
Cov = response to Covid 
pandemic) 

1.1.1 Review monthly 
report prepared by LEP 
for stakeholders and 
identify any immediate 
changes/additions 
required for use with 
wider audience.  
 
1.1.2 Publish this report 
via Careers Hub website 
and Skills Portal. Start 
with publishing the 
November 2020 monthly 
report and then adjust 
based on feedback from 
the working group. 
 
1.1.3 Review commercial 
LMI products and procure 
suitable tool for use on 
Skills Portal and Careers 
Hub website 
 
 
1.1.4 Investigate how to 
prepare LMI reports that 
show skills used in other 
sectors as presented in 
EMSI ‘Analysis of Digital 

LEP 
(JB, DW, PW) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP 
(DW, PW) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP 
(DW, PW, PC, 
RJ + LMI 
working 
group) 
 
 
LEP + Careers 
Hub 
(DW, PW, PC, 
RJ + LMI 

Dec 2020  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dec 2020 
then 
ongoing – 
monthly 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Green Monthly reports 
covering UC 
claimant count, 
furlough and 
job postings 
analysis being 
prepared and 
published each 
month via skills 
portal and 
careers hub 
website. Copies 
shared with 
school and 
college careers 
leads and with 
stakeholders.  
 
EMSI Career 
Coach licence 
purchased. 
Launching by 
end Feb 2021.  
 
LMI working 
group set up by 
DW to clarify 
LMI needs of 
school and 

P
age 35



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 2 of 23 
 

Pathways’ digital and 
cyber IoT presentation  
 
 
1.1.4 Review paid-for LMI 
tools/reports already 
used by schools and 
colleges to investigate 
whether these are worth 
using more widely and 
whether a ‘hub-wide’ deal 
can be struck with 
providers. 
 

working 
group) 
 
 
LEP+ Careers 
Hub 
(DW, PC, RJ + 
LMI working 
group) 
 

college careers 
leads. Next 
meeting 
02/03/21, main 
topics: current 
sources and use 
of LMI and 
integration of 
Career Coach 
with these. 
 
Further actions 
and resources 
to be reviewed 
in March 2021 
by GSAP Info 
and Signposting 
sub-group 
established at 
Feb GSAP 
meeting.  

1.2 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Information and  
signposting  
– Skills portal 

Skills portal - A central point of 
contact for businesses and 
individuals seeking skills 
 
L, Cov 
 

1.2.1 Commission and 
populate website 
 
1.2.2 Check content with 
service and skills 
providers to unsure 
content is up-to-date, 
accurate and described 
appropriately  
 
1.2.3 Promote portal to 
potential users and 

LEP and GCC 
 
 
 
LEP (PW and 
PC) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (JG, PW 
and PC) 

Oct 2020 
 
 
 
Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 
 
 
 

Green Funding secured 
from GCC. 
Checks made 
with providers 
to ensure links 
are accurate 
and up-to-date.  
Additional links 
and support 
from 
community 
groups, etc. 

P
age 36



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 3 of 23 
 

intermediaries (e.g. 
District Councils, 
community groups) 
 
1.2.4 Review content and 
update with further 
support resources 
 
1.2.5 Review usage of 
portal and adjust content 
and messaging 
accordingly 
 

 
 
 
 
LEP (PW and 
PC) 
 
 
LEP (PW and 
PC) 

Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 
 
Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 
 
Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 

requested of 
District ED/skills 
leads.  
 
Usage being 
reviewed 
monthly. 

1.3 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Information and  
signposting -  Careers 
Information, Advice and 
Guidance 

Accessible and effective CIAG 
for adults and young people 
 
L, Cov 
 

1.3.1Investigate capacity 
and effectiveness of 
existing CIAG support for 
adults via Adviza (NCS), 
DWP and training 
providers 
 
1.3.2 Investigate capacity 
and effectiveness of 
existing CIAG support for 
young people via Careers 
Hub students and careers 
leads surveys 
 
1.3.3 Seek additional 
resources and further 
develop CIAG support for 
adults as required 
through Adviza, National 
Careers Service, ESFA, 

LEP (PW and 
PC) 
GCC (VW) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (DW and 
RJ), GCC (SP) 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PW and 
PC) GCC (VW) 
 
 
 
 

Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 

Amber Further actions 
and resources 
to be reviewed 
in March 2021 
by GSAP Info 
and Signposting 
sub-group 
established at 
Feb GSAP 
meeting. 

P
age 37



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 4 of 23 
 

DWP via training, LMI 
dissemination, etc. 
 
1.3.4 Seek additional 
resources and further 
develop CIAG support for 
young people as required 
through Careers Hub, 
schools, alternative 
provision, colleges, Future 
Me via training, LMI 
dissemination, etc. 
 
1.3.5 Seek support from 
sector specialists e.g. 
Construction Industry 
Training Board (CITB) , 
Ministry of Building & 
Innovation(MOBIE), 
CYNAM 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
LEP (DW and 
RJ) GCC (SP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PW and 
PC)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 

1.4 Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

Higher Education Marketing 
Group 

Co-ordinated promotion of HE 
course/programme offer 
available across all 
Gloucestershire universities, 
especially for priority growth 
sectors (cyber & digital, agri-
tech, 
green/renewables/retrofit) 
 
L, Cov 
 

Actions to be confirmed 
by Higher education 
Marketing Group in 
consultation with GSAP 

Higher 
Education 
Marketing 
Group(tbc) 

Feb 2021 
onwards 

Red PC checked with 
university 
marketing leads 
at Hartpury and 
RAU (18/02/21) 
and they are 
not aware of 
this group or 
the ask of that 
group. 
 

P
age 38



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 5 of 23 
 

         

Apprenticeships 

Ref. Source Workstream Objective Actions Who When RAG Progress 

2.1 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Apprenticeships  
– Supply stimulation 

Campaign and support for local 
businesses to see the benefits 
of apprenticeships in economic 
recovery 
 
Cov 

2.1.1 Review current 
apprenticeship 
information provided via 
existing LEP 
channels/skills portal/etc. 
 
2.1.2 Obtain and review 
promotional materials 
from other 
areas/organisations  
 
2.1.3 Prepare own 
promotional materials 
 
2.1.4 Distribute own 
promotional materials via 
LEP, Growth Hub, GCC 
and provider channels 
 
2.1.5 Arrange 2 webinars 
to promote and Q&A 
apprenticeships and other 
related schemes to 
employers – incl. 
employers using app levy 
effectively, SMEs, 
apprentices, ASK project 
 
2.1.6 Maintain links with 
and support SW 

LEP (PC, PW) 
and GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) 
and GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) 
and GCC (DB) 
 
LEP (PC, PW), 
GCC (DB), 
Growth Hub 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW), 
GCC (DB), 
Growth Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW), 
GCC (DB), 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
 
 
March 
2021 
 
 
 
April 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

Green Examples of 
materials from 
training 
providers and 
Amazing 
Apprenticeships 
have been 
obtained. 
 
Own materials 
need design 
capacity – JM 
unable to 
provide this at 
present because 
of SAP 
commitments. 
 
Webinars: 
propose dates; 
duration; 
content; 
platform; etc. at 
12/01/21 DB & 
PC meeting 
 
SWAAN and 
GCC National 
Apprenticeship 
Week events 

P
age 39



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 6 of 23 
 

Apprenticeships 
Ambassador Network 
 

Growth Hub 
 
 

promoted via 
Careers Hub, 
social media 
and Skills Portal. 

2.2 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Apprenticeships  
– Increased Levy  
transfer to local  
businesses 
 

More Levy-paying local 
employers to transfer unspent 
Levy to businesses that can use 
this to increase the number of 
apprenticeship opportunities 
L, Cov 
 

2.2.1 Prepare list of all 
levy-paying 
Gloucestershire 
employers and RAG rate 
re. levy transfer 
 
2.2.2 Promote work done 
on levy transfer by GCC 
and other good practice 
to local levy-paying 
employers 
 
2.2.3 Work with local 
levy-paying employers to 
increase levy transfer 
(targets to be agreed with 
GSAP) 
 

LEP (PC) 
and GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) 
and GCC (DB), 
training 
providers 
 
 
LEP (PC) 
and GCC (DB), 
training 
providers 
 
 
 

Feb 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
 
 
 
 
March to 
December 
2021 

Amber  

2.3 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Apprenticeships  
– Retain existing  
apprentices 
 

Risk of existing apprentices 
being laid off at end of 
furlough/as local businesses 
contract 
 
Cov 

2.3.1 Add advice for 
apprentices being 
furloughed to skills portal 
 
2.3.2 Add advice for 
employers on retaining 
apprentices to Growth 
Hub website 
 

LEP (PW) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PW) 
 
 
 
 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 

Green  

P
age 40



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 7 of 23 
 

2.3.3 Brief Growth Hub 
advisers on key messages 
re. retaining apprentices 
 
2.3.3 Review monthly 
intelligence from Growth 
Hub advisers and District 
ED leads on any 
apprentices at risk of 
being laid off and follow-
up accordingly with 
employers 
 

LEP (PW) and 
GCC (DB) 
 
 
LEP (PW) and 
GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 

Feb 2021 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
then 
ongoing 
monthly 

2.4 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 
 
and 
 
Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

Apprenticeships - 
Apprenticeship offer 
supports growth  
sectors and  
long-term ambitions  
of the County 
 
Apprenticeships – 
Apprenticeship programmes 
and clearing house and 
Green energy & green 
infrastructure programmes – 
in Think Glos interventions 

The Apprenticeships and other 
training provision offered in 
the County need to enable 
individuals to gain jobs and 
train in the growth sectors and 
the sectors identified in the LIS 
(e.g. cyber and digital, 
Green/renewables/retrofitting) 
 
L, Cov 
 

2.4.1 Prepare updated 
contact list for all 
apprenticeship providers 
in the county 
 
2.4.2 Contact all 
apprenticeship providers 
in the county to confirm 
current provision and 
numbers + future 
provision 
 
2.4.3 Compare proposed 
future provision from 
providers with growth 
sectors and LIS ambitions 
 
2.4.4 Work with GSAP, 
GWP and providers to 
shape future 

GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB) 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB) 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
March to 
June 2021 
 
 
 
 

Green DB has 
prepared an 
updated contact 
list. PC has 
obtained and 
shared GWP 
providers list. 
 
DB and JM 
currently 
working on 
report with key 
metrics for 
apprenticeship 
provision from 
ESFA data cube. 
This will be 
shared with 
GSAP members 

P
age 41



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 8 of 23 
 

apprenticeship and other 
training provision to more 
closely match sector 
growth ambitions in the 
county 
 
2.4.5 Develop pathways 
into growth sectors and 
promote these via schools 
careers leads, DWP, 
Adviza, ASK project, skills 
portal, providers, etc.  
 
 
2.4.6 Support One Public 
Estate retrofit bid with 
Stroud DC and SGS 
College and explore 
options to expand to 
other local authorities 
 
2.4.7 Explore partnership 
working with Retrofit 
Academy and Cotswold 
DC 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB) 
careers hub 
team, ASK 
project, 
Adviza, DWP 
 
 
Stroud DC, 
SGS College, 
LEP (PC, EW) 
 
 
 
 
Cotswolds DC, 
SGS College, 
LEP (PC, PW) 
 

June 2021 
to Sept 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 2021 
to May 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Nov 2020 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 

by end March 
2021. 

2.5 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Apprenticeships  
- Greater flexibility  
for employers in  
the training they  
spend their Levy on 
 

Shorter and more focused 
training programmes needed 
by employers but unable to 
fund this through 
Apprenticeship Levy and many 
employers unwilling/unable to 
spend on this training 

2.5.1 Continue to lobby 
DfE and local MPs for 
further flexibilities in use 
of the levy 
 
2.5.2 Include ask for 
increased flexibility in the 

LEP (DO, DS, 
PC) and GCC 
(DB) 
 
 
GSAP (PC) 
 

Jan 2021 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
Feb and 
March 

Green  

P
age 42



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 9 of 23 
 

 
L, Cov 
 

Local Skills Report 
published March 2021 
 
2.5.3 GFirst LEP and GCC 
to continue to seek 
funding for opportunities 
for training providers to 
deliver shorter and more 
focused training 
programmes 
 

 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB, VW) 
 
 

2021 
 
 
Ongoing 

2.6 Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

Apprenticeships – 
Apprenticeship clearing 
house 

Provide support for local 
employers and local potential 
apprentices to connect and to 
increase the uptake of 
apprenticeships 
 
L, Cov 
 

2.6.1 Investigate the 
options to establish a 
Gloucestershire 
apprenticeship 
hub/clearing house (incl 
as part of a wider 
‘employment support 
hub’) 
 
 
2.6.2 Scope out support 
provided by other LEP-
managed apprenticeship 
hubs/clearing houses and 
the associated resource 
requirements (incl as part 
of a wider ‘employment 
support hub’) 
 
 
2.6.3 Prepare business 
case for 

LEP (PC) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB, VW) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC) and 
GCC (DB, VW) 

Feb 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb  
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 

Amber Initial 
discussions with 
GCC, GEGJC and 
BEIS have taken 
place re. 
funding.  
 
Further 
discussions with 
GCC about a 
wider 
‘employment 
hub’ and co-
ordination of 
employment 
and skills 
February and 
March 2021. 
 
In Feb, GCC 
confirmed it has 
made £100k 

P
age 43



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 10 of 23 
 

apprenticeship/wider 
employment support hub 
to go to GSAP, LEP Board, 
GEGJC and relevant other 
stakeholders (LEP 
business groups, GCC, 
UoG, training providers) 
 
 

 additional 
funding 
available to 
support the co-
ordination of 
employment 
and skills in the 
County 
including 
support for the 
co-ordination of 
apprenticeships. 

2.7 Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

Apprenticeships – Degree 
Apprenticeships 

Extend the range of degree 
apprenticeships offered by 
Gloucestershire universities 
that support the sector growth 
ambitions of the County (cyber 
& digital, agritech, 
green/renewables/retrofit) 
 
L, Cov 
 

2.7.1 Gloucestershire 
universities and UWE (via 
Gloucestershire College 
and the IoT) to clarify 
degree apprenticeship 
plans to GSAP 
 
2.7.2 Promote degree 
apprenticeships to 
employers and potential 
degree apprentices 
 
2.7.3 Review uptake with 
GSAP and clarify actions 
to increase uptake 
 

UoG, Hartpury 
University, 
RAU 
 
 
 
 
UoG, Hartpury 
University, 
RAU 
 
 
 
 
UoG, Hartpury 
University, 
RAU + GSAP 
 

March 
2021 

Amber  

 
 
 

        

P
age 44



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 11 of 23 
 

 

Unemployment/Redundancy Support 

Ref. Source Workstream Objective Actions Who When RAG Progress 

3.1 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Unemployment/Redundancy 
Support - Brokerage support 
for businesses 
 

Advice, guidance and 
brokerage to help businesses 
find ways of 
avoiding/mitigating 
redundancies; brokerage to 
relevant other support 
available 
 
Cov 

3.1.1 Clarify Adviza and 
DWP existing support 
offer, prepare flowchart 
and supporting 
information. 
 
3.1.2 Ensure key 
stakeholders are aware of 
existing Adviza and DWP 
support offer (District 
ED/skills leads, Growth 
Hub Network partners, 
chambers of commerce, 
LEP business groups, etc.) 
 
3.1.3 Build referral 
network/taskforce to 
identify and refer on 
employers seeking 
redundancy help 
 
 

LEP (PW) 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 

Green Adviza and DWP 
existing support 
offer confirmed 
with PW. 
Flowchart 
drafted and 
being refined. 
 
Adviza and DWP 
to present to 
District ED/skills 
leads and 
Growth Hub 
Network 
partners on 
23/02/21. 
 
 
 
Initial invitation 
to join taskforce 
went out from 
DWP (Dec 
2020). Follow 
up at workshop 
on 23/02/21. 
 

3.2 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Unemployment/Redundancy 
Support - CIAG support for 

Individuals need help seeking 
roles in sectors new to them 

3.2.1 Prepare and publish 
monthly Glos 

LEP, Careers 
Hub (JB, DW, 
PC) 

Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 

Green Monthly reports 
prepared and 
published via 

P
age 45



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 12 of 23 
 

individuals at risk of 
redundancy/seeking work 
 

and knowing which sectors are 
hiring/growing 
 

employment reports 
using EMSI tools 
3.2.2 Ensure CIAG, 
employment and skills 
providers have access to 
and use the monthly 
reports with their 
customers 
 
 
3.2.3 Identify and clearly 
signpost to stakeholders 
the growing sectors and 
organisations recruiting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2.4 Clarify LMI and 
training needs of local 
stakeholders and 
implement information 
and training solutions 
 
 
 
 
3.2.5 Investigate, 
resource and procure 
suitable LMI tool for 

 
LEP, Careers 
Hub (JB, DW, 
PW, PC), 
Adviza, 
employment 
and skills 
providers 
 
LEP, LEP 
Business 
Groups, 
Careers Hub 
(JB, EW, KC, 
DW, PW, PC), 
DWP, Adviza, 
employment 
and skills 
providers 
 
LEP, Careers 
Hub (JB, DW, 
PW, PC), 
DWP, Adviza, 
employment 
and skills 
providers 
 
LEP, Careers 
Hub (JB, DW, 
PW, PC), 
Careers & 
Enterprise 

 
Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Nov 2020 
then 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
then 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
then 
ongoing 
 

Skills Portal and 
Careers Hub. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Job postings 
data being used 
by some 
providers. 
Further 
promotion 
needed. 
 
 
 
 
Careers Hub 
LMI group 
meeting 
03/03/21 and 
will confirm 
schools’ LMI 
and training 
needs. 
 
EMSI Career 
Coach 
purchased and 
being launched 

P
age 46



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 13 of 23 
 

sharing with stakeholders 
and customers via skills 
portal and Careers Hub 
website 
 

Company 
(CEC) 

 
 
 

by end of Feb 
2021 to bring 
together 
careers 
information 
with live job 
vacancies. 
 

3.3 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Unemployment/Redundancy 
Support - Clear retraining 
offers/pathways for those 
who need it 
 

Courses/programmes that 
enable individuals to upskill/re-
train to enter/re-enter the 
workforce: 
To include: 

• Employability skills 
• Growth sector-specific 

training/qualifications 
• Training/qualifications 

that match the skills 
sought by local 
employers 

• Self-employment  & 
business start-up skills 
and support 

 
L, Cov 
 

3.3.1 Identify, collate and 
promote existing support 
programmes and 
providers via skills portal 
 
3.3.2 Work with 
stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote 
clear retraining 
offers/pathways using 
Adult Education Budget 
(AEB)  
 
 
3.3.3 Work with 
stakeholders to co-
ordinate and promote 
clear retraining 
offers/pathways using 
other suitable resources 

LEP ( PW, PC) 
 
 
 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee, 
GSAP, AEB-
funded 
providers 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee, 
GSAP, 
employment 
and skills 
providers 
 
 

Nov 2020 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
Feb 2021 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2021 
and 
ongoing 

Green Achieved and 
links and 
wording 
checked and 
updated by 
providers. 
 
Initial 
agreement with 
GC, SGS, 
Cirencester 
Colleges and 
GCC now needs 
detailed 
planning and 
co-ordination as 
part of the work 
of the E & S Co-
Ordinator role. 
 
IM raised issue 
of recent 
graduates being 
unable to find 
work or work 

P
age 47



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 14 of 23 
 

 
 

experience. PC 
to investigate 
scale of issue 
and possible 
solutions with 
Polly Pick at 
UoG. 
 
 

3.4 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Unemployment/Redundancy 
Support - Local co-
ordination and contribution 
to national 
employability/redundancy 
support initiatives 
 

Local co-ordination and 
contribution to national 
employability/redundancy 
support initiatives: 
Kickstart 
Restart 
Work and Health Programme 
and Job Entry Targeted 
Support (JETS)  
 
L, Cov 
 

3.4.1 Work with 
stakeholders to ensure 
national initiatives 
complement local 
provision and meet local 
needs 
 
3.4.2 Clarify with DWP the 
Kickstart gateways 
operating in Glos and co-
ordinate/share good 
practice between them 
 
3.4.3. Work with key 
stakeholders to 
investigate options and 
resources for an 
‘Employment hub’ to co-
ordinate and drive 
national and local 
employment initiatives in 
Glos, incl. work with 
employers 
 

LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee, 
GSAP 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, GSAP 
 
 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, ESFA, 
GSAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jan 2021 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
Feb and 
March 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Green GCC and GC 
approved as 
Kickstart 
Gateways – 
seeking 
confirmation 
from DWP 
about others 
 
Gateway status 
changed 
following 
25/01/21 
announcements 
 
 
In Feb, GCC 
confirmed it has 
made £100k 
additional 
funding 
available to 
support the co-
ordination of 

P
age 48



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 15 of 23 
 

3.4.4 Deliver promotional 
campaigns to increase 
number of organisations 
supporting national 
initiatives and share good 
practice 
 
3.4.5 Investigate ways to 
integrate reporting of 
Glos-based national 
programmes 
 

LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, Districts 
 
 
 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, GSAP, 
providers 

March 
2021 and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 and 
ongoing 

employment 
and skills in the 
County 
including 
support for the 
co-ordination of 
apprenticeships. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.5 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Unemployment/Redundancy 
Support - Commissioning, 
preparation and delivery of 
local employability/ 
redundancy support 
initiatives 
 

Sector-based work academies 
for cyber and digital; green -
renewables/retrofitting to 
meet longer-term ambitions of 
the Local Industrial Strategy 
(LIS) 
sector-based-work-academies-
employer-guide 
 
Cov 
 

3.5.1 Work with current 
funders to secure 
extensions to existing 
local support 
 
 
 
3.5.2 Develop clear plans 
for use of ESF Reserve 
Fund for economic 
recovery activity/projects 
 
 
 
3.5.3 Commission and 
procure suitable ESF 
Reserve Fund economic 

LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, Big 
Lottery, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, Big 
Lottery, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee, 
GSAP 
 
LEP ( PC, PW), 
GCC (VW, DB), 
DWP, Big 

Jan 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 

Green Big Lottery has 
confirmed 
extension of 
GEM project. 
DWP has 
confirmed 
extension of 
DTS Workstart 
programme. 
 
Initial proposals 
for ESF Reserve 
Fund agreed 
with GCC and 
ESIF Committee 
 
Initial proposals 
submitted to 

P
age 49

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sector-based-work-academies-employer-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sector-based-work-academies-employer-guide


Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 16 of 23 
 

recovery 
activities/projects 
 
 
 
3.5.4 Scope, prepare and 
deliver suitable sector-
based work academies 
(SWAPs) for cyber and 
digital 
 
3.5.5 Scope, prepare and 
deliver suitable sector-
based work academies 
(SWAPs) for 
green/renewables/ 
Retrofitting 
 
3.5.6 Scope, prepare and 
deliver suitable sector-
based work academies 
(SWAPs) for agri-
tech/other suitable 
sectors 
 
 
 
 

Lottery, ESFA, 
ESIF 
Committee, 
GSAP 
 
LEP, LEP 
Business 
Groups, DWP, 
training 
providers 
 
LEP, LEP 
Business 
Groups, DWP, 
training 
providers 
 
 
LEP, LEP 
Business 
Groups, DWP, 
training 
providers 

 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2021 
onwards 

DWP in Jan 
2021 
 
 
 
Initial SWAPs 
proposals 
discussed with 
DWP in Dec 
2020. Now 
needs detailed 
planning and 
implementation 
with DWP, LEP 
Business 
groups, training 
providers. 

3.6 Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 

Engineering and 
Manufacturing Capability 
Index 

To match redundancies to 
vacancies and contract 
fulfilment requests to the 
Gloucestershire’s wider 
capability 

3.6.1 Initial scoping of 
interventions required 
 
3.6.2 Actions to be 
clarified with LEP 

LEP RL, PC and 
PW,  
Advanced 
Engineering 
and 

March 
2021 

Amber Initial proposals 
reviewed with 
RL, Chair of LEP 
Advanced 
Engineering & 

P
age 50



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 17 of 23 
 

to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

 
Cov 

advanced manufacturing 
and engineering (AEM) 
business group + DWP 
 
3.6.2 Investigate Talent 
Retention Solutions work 
on other sectors to check 
it could support AEM 
sector. 

Manufacturing 
business 
group, DWP, 
Growth Hub 

Manufacturing 
business group 
19/02/21.  
 
Needs further 
scoping and 
meeting with 
Talent 
Retention 
Solutions to 
understand 
whether their 
platform could 
help. 
 

3.7 Cheltenham 
Economic 
Recovery 
Taskforce 
business plan 
 

Priorities 2 – Cyber, 4 – Local 
business resilience and jobs, 
7 – skills and education 
 
CERTF business plan 

To support and maximise the 
construction skills and 
employment opportunities 
within Cheltenham Borough 

3.7.1 Add Golden Valley, 
W Cheltenham and NW 
Cheltenham construction 
skills 
and employment actions 
tbc once skills group has 
met in mid March 2021. 
 

CERTF, CBC, 
GCC, LEP, 
CiTB, skills 
providers, 
AccXel, skills 
and training 
providers 

tbc Amber Initial 
discussions with 
CBC and 
Cheltenham 
Economic 
Recovery 
Taskforce 
(CERTF) in Feb 
2021. Further 
scoping with 
CERTF skills 
subgroup in 
March 2021. 
 

3.8 Cheltenham 
Economic 
Recovery 

Priorities 2 – Cyber, 4 – Local 
business resilience and jobs, 
7 – skills and education 
 

To support and maximise the 
green/renewables/retrofit 
skills and employment 

3.7.1 Add Cheltenham 
green/renewables/retrofit 
skills 

CERTF, CBC, 
GCC, LEP, 
skills and 

tbc  Initial 
discussions with 
CBC and 
Cheltenham 

P
age 51

https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/documents/s34430/2020_12_22_CERTF%20Business%20Plan_appendix%202_business%20plan.pdf


Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 18 of 23 
 

Taskforce 
business plan 
 

CERTF business plan opportunities within 
Cheltenham Borough 

and employment actions 
tbc once skills group has 
met in mid March 2021. 
 

training 
providers 

Economic 
Recovery 
Taskforce 
(CERTF) in Feb 
2021. Further 
scoping with 
CERTF skills 
subgroup in 
March 2021. 
 

3.9 Reinvigorate 
and Repurpose 
– An action 
plan for 
Gloucester’s 
Economic 
Recovery post 
Covid-19 
 
 

Maintaining momentum on 
regeneration ( Forum 
development) 
 
Gloucester economic 
recovery plan 

To support and maximise the 
construction skills and 
employment opportunities 
presented by The Forum 
development in Gloucester 

3.8.1 Add Forum Academy 
construction skills and 
employment actions tbc 
following initial meeting 
18/02/21. 
 

Gloucester 
City Council, 
Reef, GCC, 
LEP, CiTB, 
skills 
providers 

tbc Amber Initial 
discussions with 
Gloucester City 
Council and 
Reef 
(developers) 
have taken 
place. Initial 
scoping meeting 
18/02/21. 
 

 
 
 

        

Cyber County -Digital and cyber skills 

Ref. Source Workstream Objective Actions Who When RAG Progress 

4.1 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 

Digital and cyber skills - 
‘Digital citizens’ and skills to 
work remotely 
 

‘Digital citizens’ and skills to 
work remotely - 
Local, flexible, affordable/free 
courses and learning 
programmes 
 
 

4.1.1Collate information 
about digital and cyber 
skills offer from 
Gloucestershire training 
providers and promote 
via Skills Portal 
 

LEP (PC, PW) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Green Current offer 
collated and 
included in skills 
portal. 
 
 
 

P
age 52

https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/documents/s34430/2020_12_22_CERTF%20Business%20Plan_appendix%202_business%20plan.pdf
https://democracy.gloucester.gov.uk/documents/s51676/Economic%20Recovery%20Action%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.gloucester.gov.uk/documents/s51676/Economic%20Recovery%20Action%20Plan.pdf


Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 19 of 23 
 

4.1.2 Collate information 
about digital and cyber 
skills offer from national 
training providers and 
promote via Skills Portal 
 

LEP (PC, PW) December 
2020 

Current offer 
collated and 
included in skills 
portal. 

4.2 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 
 
and 
 
Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 
Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

Digital and cyber skills - 
Digital skills for businesses 
to support digital 
transformation 
 
and 
 
‘Gloucestershire - the Cyber 
county’ 
 

Digital skills for businesses to 
support digital transformation 
- Local, flexible, affordable 
learning programmes to help 
equip businesses to manage 
more of their work 
online/digitally 
 

4.2.1 Prepare updated 
contact list for all digital 
and cyber skills providers 
in the county 
 
4.2.2 Contact all providers 
in the county to map 
current provision and 
numbers + future 
provision 
 
 
4.2.3 Work with key 
stakeholders to shape 
future provision to more 
closely match sector 
growth ambitions in the 
county incl. the 2 
Institutes of Technology 
(IoTs) operating in the 
County 
 
4.2.4 Develop pathways 
into growth sectors and 
promote these via schools 
careers leads, DWP, 

LEP (PC, PW) + 
Careers Hub 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) + 
Careers Hub 
 
 
 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 

April 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
June 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 

Amber Needs further 
resource either 
within GFirst 
LEP or 
externally to do 
this (e.g. part of 
skills co-
ordinator role). 

P
age 53



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 20 of 23 
 

Adviza, ASK project, skills 
portal, providers, etc.  
 
 
4.2.5 Support the cyber 
and digital skills needs of 
the Golden Valley 
development 
(Cheltenham) and The 
Forum (Gloucester) 
 
 
4.2.6 Support the 
implementation and skills 
offer of the Cirencester 
college Digital Skills 
Centre 
 

group, 
providers 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
 
GSAP, LEP (PC, 
BBJ) 
 

 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 

4.3 Skills Economic 
Recovery Plan 
(SERP) 
 
and 
 
Think 
Gloucestershire 
Interventions 
that enable 

Digital and cyber skills - 
Cyber skills and 
qualifications to equip 
individuals to enter the 
cyber sector and increase 
cyber capabilities of local 
employers 
 
and 
 

Cyber skills and qualifications 
to equip individuals to enter 
the cyber sector and increase 
cyber capabilities of local 
employers 

- Local, flexible, 
affordable learning 
programmes meeting 
industry standards and 
employer 

4.3.1 Prepare updated 
contact list for all digital 
and cyber skills providers 
in the county 
 
4.3.2 Contact all providers 
in the county to map 
current provision and 
numbers + future 
provision 

LEP (PC, PW) + 
Careers Hub 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, PW) + 
Careers Hub 
 
 
 

April 2021 
 
 
 
 
April 2021 
 
 
 
 

Amber Needs further 
resource either 
within GFirst 
LEP or 
externally to do 
this (e.g. part of 
skills co-
ordinator role). 
 
 

P
age 54



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 21 of 23 
 

Gloucestershire 
to Reimagine 
and Restart 
 

‘Gloucestershire - the Cyber 
county’ 
 

requirements including 
Degree 
Apprenticeships  

 

 
4.3.3 Work with key 
stakeholders to shape 
future provision to more 
closely match sector 
growth ambitions in the 
county incl. the 2 
Institutes of Technology 
(IoTs) operating in the 
County 
 
4.3.4 Develop pathways 
into growth sectors and 
promote these via schools 
careers leads, DWP, 
Adviza, ASK project, skills 
portal, providers, etc.  
 
 
 
4.3.5 Support the cyber 
and digital skills needs of 
the Golden Valley 
development 
(Cheltenham) and The 
Forum (Gloucester) in 
collaboration with the 
relevant groups and 
stakeholders (e.g. 
Cheltenham Economic 
Development Taskforce, 
Gloucester Economic 
Recovery Task Force, etc.) 

 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, 
Careers Hub, 
LEP cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
GSAP, GWP, 
CYNAM, LEP 
cyber and 
digital 
business 
group, 
providers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
June 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Glos Careers 
Hub seeking to 
become a 
CyberFirst 
partner (March 
2021) 
 
 
 
Initial meeting 
with Madeline 
Howard 
(CYNAM) 
16/02/21 to 
scope out any 
additional 
support 
needed. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 22 of 23 
 

 
4.3.6 Support the 
implementation and skills 
offer of the Cirencester 
college Digital Skills 
Centre 
 
 
4.3.7 Support appropriate 
bids for and facilitate 
implementation of Digital 
Skills Bootcamps in 
Gloucestershire 
 

 
LEP (PC, BBJ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEP (PC, RH, 
PW) 

 
Feb 2021 
onwards 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2021 
onwards 

 
Building project 
and curriculum 
offer on track 
and on 
schedule. 
 
 
GFirst LEP a 
partner in the 
Institute of 
Coding (IoC)-led 
bid submitted 
12/02/21.  
 
Feb 2021 -GFirst 
LEP prepared 
and promoted a 
survey to local 
businesses to 
establish 
demand for 
skills and job 
roles in cyber 
and digital, both 
to inform the 
bid and inform 
wider work on 
cyber and 
digital skills and 
employment. 
 

         

P
age 56



Version 5 – Last updated 18/02/2021  Page 23 of 23 
 

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Gloucestershire Growth Hub report for the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Background

Growth Hubs were introduced for two principle reasons. First, they aim to address a market failure of businesses not 
knowing where to go to access business support. Second, they were designed to simplify what had become a 
confusing and fragmented picture of business support. 

Whilst these are still the fundamental aims of Growth Hubs, BEIS has changed their focus in recent years, specifying 
that core Growth Hub services should be prioritised on those activities with the greatest impact on business growth, 
supporting delivery of local Strategic Economic Plans and the Government’s Industrial Strategy, alongside Local 
Industrial Strategies developed at a LEP level. 

Therefore, at the national level there has been a shift for Growth Hubs from providing light touch to scale-up 
support. The Industrial Strategy White Paper focused throughout on the value of scale-ups which are seen as part of 
the solution to the productivity challenges. 

The Gloucestershire Growth Hub formed in 2014, as a result of a partnership between GFirst LEP and the University 
of Gloucestershire (UoG). Its overarching objective is to act as a catalyst for economic growth in the county by 
encouraging the development of world-class companies, increasing exports and supporting entrepreneurial start-ups 
with high growth potential. 

The Growth Hub has continued to evolve and expand its operations, both as a response to the strategic direction of 
BEIS but also as a result of the key findings presented in the Hardisty Jones report in 2015; 80% of the businesses 
surveyed in that study said they would use a resource centre if it was near to them. 

The development and roll-out of the Growth Hub Network model has addressed many of the issues identified in the 
2015 report, in particular the need for localised support delivery, with new centres in Cirencester, Tewkesbury, 
Stroud and at all 31 Gloucestershire County Council library sites.   The 31 library sites provide countywide access 
points to Growth Hub services from Chipping Campden to Wotton under Edge and Newent to Lydney.  

Further expansion of the Growth Hub Network is in development, with new facilities in Cheltenham, and the Forest 
of Dean opening in 2021. The Network model expansion has been funded by £9.4 million of Local Growth Funding 
(£5million allocated to UoG).

Although delivered by a number of different partners, in terms of business support the Growth Hub Network 
operates as a single ‘entity’ with dedicated staff at each centre, a centralised website and CRM and coordinated 
monitoring and reporting.    Wrap around services and operating models vary slightly in each centre to support 
staffing costs and overheads, but remain compliant with the state aid requirements of the Local Growth Fund.

Delivery 

Funding

The Growth Hub is supported by both ERDF and BEIS funding.   The current ERDF contract runs until December 2022.  
GFirst LEP and Growth Hub Network partners provide match funding, mainly in the form of staffing resources to this 
contract.

BEIS funding is received by the LEP and is utilised to bolster the ERDF contract where required and to develop new 
products and services for example Hub Mentors.  BEIS funding has been confirmed for the financial year 2021- 2022.

Future funding for Growth Hubs is likely to be reliant on allocations from the UK Shared prosperity funds.  

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



GFirst LEP February 2021

The financial year 2019-2020 has seen further allocations of BEIS and ERDF funding for Growth Hubs to deliver the 
following additional activities:

 Covid 19 response and recovery planning
 Specialist advisor support
 Peer Networks
 EU Exit outreach programme
 SME Recovery grants

Business Support

Across the network there currently are 7.2 FTE Business Navigators and 3 FTE guides, 4 part time specialists and 3 
FTE EU Exit advisors.  Front line staff are supported by operational managers, marketing and events, business hosts 
and a data officer.

Business Navigators spend on average 3-6 hours with a business and Business Guides between 12-15 hours.   There 
is a targeted and comprehensive offer of events that businesses and individuals can access and when physically 
open, businesses and individuals can use the facilities for work and networking.

At the heart of the offer is free and impartial advice and guidance, an in-depth diagnostic of the business needs and 
accelerated access to the solutions.

Growth Hubs are targeted to work with businesses with growth potential, for example – those wanting to access 
new markets, taking on more staff, securing new contracts, developing and launching new products, achieving 
greater productivity, accessing finance.  However, a service is offered to all businesses and of course this year the 
Network has responded to the immediate needs of businesses impacted by Covid 19.

Importantly Growth Hub services should not replace or displace other funded or commercial services and work 
closely with local and national partners and professional service providers to signpost and refer businesses to these.

Indicator Cumulative Oct 2014 to Dec 2020
Number of businesses that have received ‘light 
touch’ triage, information and/or signposting 
support (excluding website traffic)

3263

Number of businesses receiving ‘medium 
intensity’ information, diagnostic and 
brokerage support (minimum of 3 hours 
support)

2888

Number of businesses receiving ‘high intensity’ 
support e.g. account management / intensive 
support directly provided by the Hub or partner 
organisation

1368

Total number of individuals who been helped 
to start a business 

501

Page 60



GFirst LEP February 2021

Headlines from independent evaluation of 2019-2020 delivery – EBS Consulting

The Growth Hub is having a substantial impact in terms of job creation. In 2019/20 the work of the Growth Hub 
resulted in the creation of 481 net additional jobs. 

There is a very high level of Growth Hub customer satisfaction. 84% of businesses were either satisfied or highly 
satisfied with the support they received. 

This high level of satisfaction was reinforced by the fact that every business interviewed said they were very likely 
to recommend the service to a friend or colleague and most said they already had. 

The significant added value that the Growth Hub is having on business growth was emphasised by the fact that 
39% of businesses supported indicated that they are either likely or highly likely to take on additional staff as a 
result of the support they have received from the Growth Hub. 

The Growth Hub has also clearly provided significant strategic added value to businesses, primarily in the form of 
increasing confidence to grow, improving financial planning skills and increasing their business networks. In 
particular, the Business Mentoring programme has proved an excellent mechanism to deliver this support on a 
personalised, tailored basis. 

In terms of wider stakeholder perceptions, discussions with BEIS confirmed that the Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
is regarded as one of the top exemplar Growth Hubs in the country, and general feedback on the operational 
delivery of the Growth Hub from the local stakeholders we interviewed was excellent. 

The 2015 Hardisty Jones report highlighted the ‘lack of clarity in the Gloucestershire business community about 
the role of the Growth Hub’. However, this perception has now changed considerably and almost all stakeholders 
we interviewed were of the opinion that there is now a ‘strong awareness of the Growth Hub with businesses.’ 

In terms of penetration levels, it is estimated that the ‘Growth Hub has engaged with 25% of the local business 
population since it opened in 2014. This is an excellent achievement and is way beyond the penetration rates 
achieved by most Growth Hubs we have evaluated. 

It is felt that the business support landscape in Gloucestershire is still complex. While Growth Hubs have a 
simplification remit from BEIS, most stakeholders think that they have limited influence as they do not have 
control over all projects and support initiatives. 

Improving partnership working is another key role that BEIS has set out for Growth Hubs and in Gloucestershire 
there was consistent feedback from stakeholders that most support providers are now fully engaged. 

Engaging scale-up businesses in support initiatives can be challenging but the Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
appears to have been successful in this respect by targeting them with personalised email invitations and through 
the Business Guides. 

The Growth Hub has been successful in engaging with many businesses from the higher value-added sectors of 
Manufacturing, Information & Communication, and Professional, Scientific & Technical activities. These 
businesses represented about half of the Growth Hub’s clients.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 63



Growth Hub Background

◼Part of national network of 38 Growth Hubs

◼One of 10 cluster leads representing SWLEP and WECA

◼£9.4 million capital investment via the SEP

◼ERDF £3.4 million Core Growth Hub support (ends 

December 2022)

P
age 64



A Growing 

Gloucestershire 

Network 

• Gloucester Growth Hub 2014

• Gloucestershire County Libraries

• Cirencester Growth Hub July 2018

• Tewkesbury Growth Hub Sept 2018

• Stroud Growth Hub March 2020

• Forest of Dean Growth Hub 2021

• Cheltenham Growth Hub December 

2021 (virtual March 2021)

P
age 65



P
age 66



The Growth Hub Service

• We offer a support solution for every 

Gloucestershire business

• Support available depends on the 

growth stage and ambition of each 

business

• As business grows new support 

opportunities become available 

• Every service offer is tailored to 

growth

P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



ERDF SME Recovery Grants

Thank you so much to the team involved with this process. 

This grant will enable us to make a strategic shift which will reshape our ability to position 

ourselves to a global audience. 

We have big plans for implementing this investment, it’s daunting and takes us out of our 

comfort zone. This grant makes it a stretch zone project for us, and not in the pain zone -

we just couldn’t have taken that on at this time. 

So you have our sincerest gratitude.  Thanks and warmest regards,

P
age 70



P
age 71



P
age 72



Tewkesbury Borough Council  - Tewkesbury Growth Hub

P
age 73



Questions

◼ How do we closely align Growth Hub activity with economic development 

priorities in each district?

◼ What are the committee’s views on the following priority activities- getting 

more businesses on line, supporting business sustainability, supporting 

business innovation?

◼ What support can local authorities provide to support the future 

development and long term sustainability of Growth Hubs?

P
age 74



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

March 2021

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

1.1      Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 The proposed adoption of the ULEV (Ultra Low Emissions Vehicles) Strategy and the 

procurement and installation of Electric Vehicle Chargers across Gloucestershire. (Between 
16 Nov 2020 and 21 Dec 2020 by Cabinet Member - Environment and Planning)

 Gloucestershire County Council’s partnership agreement with Gloucester City Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council in relation to the Joint 
Core Strategy (Between 3 Aug 2020 and 31 Mar 2021 by Cabinet Member - Environment 
and Planning)

 A435 Bishops Cleeve to Cheltenham Capacity Improvements – Contract Procurement 
(Between 12 Jan 2021 and 19 Mar 2021 by Cabinet Member - Highways and Flood)

 B4063 GLOUCESTER TO CHELTENHAM CYCLE IMPROVEMENTS – Contract 
Procurement and Ancillary Orders (Between 1 Mar 2021 and 29 Mar 2021 by Cabinet 
Member - Environment and Planning)

 M5 Junction 9/A46 (Ashchurch) Transport Scheme (24 March by Cabinet)
 GCC Infrastructure Recovery Strategy (24 March by Cabinet)
 Proposed adoption of the Gloucestershire Local Development Guide 2020 (24 March by 

Cabinet)
 Tender and Award of Materials Recycling, Reuse and Recovery Services under the 

Dynamic Purchasing System for Household Recycling Centres (24 March by Cabinet)

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan:
 Highways Public Notices and Advertising 
 Tender and Award of Recyclate Services under the Dynamic Purchasing System for HRCs 
 Proposed adoption of the Gloucestershire Local Development Guide 2020 
 M5 J10 Infrastructure Recovery Strategy 
 Proposed nomination for open call for a community to host a world first fusion power plant 

and associated opportunities 

2.0 Highways 

2.1 COVID19 Response
 Most elements of delivery are continuing to operate at normal levels despite impacts from 

some staff absences being greater at present.  Critical worker letters have been issued 
where appropriate.

 Works are ongoing to try to ensure resilience in operations and winter/emergency response 
being maintained over the coming months.  Working closely with partner organisations.  
Additional work around business continuity in this area has focused on actions in the event 
of multiple scenarios such as high sickness levels combined with snow or flood event.

2.2 M5 Junction 10 / HIF bid
 OBC submitted to MHCLG on 21st March 2019; additional GCC revenue secured to 

progress this project throughout 2020/21; positive decision made in March 2020 stating that 
our bid had been successful. The funding shortfall was subject to an approved Cabinet 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=34751&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=34751&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37008&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37083&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37083&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37914&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37850&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32801&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37648&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37648&Opt=0


report on 17th June 2020; and authority to use CPO powers if necessary approved by 
Cabinet 22nd July 2020.

 The GDA is now signed; maximum sum value of £249M
 Lead Cabinet Members are being updated on a monthly basis.
 Non-statutory public consultation ran from 14th October – 25th November.  Good response 

to the consultation has been received and the results will form part of the wider work to feed 
into the Preferred Route Announcement in Spring 2021.

 Land agents appointed to progress land acquisition and negotiations in partnership with 
GCC Property.  

 Claims to date total just over £6m including ‘historic claim’ claw back. 

2.3 Highways Contracts
 Term maintenance/Professional Services - Resources operating with some limited impact 

from COVID19.  Performance on cyclical maintenance and defect repair remains above 
target.  Ability to work collaboratively with all teams remote remains challenging.

 Structural maintenance - delivery now ahead of schedule for 20/21 following concerted 
efforts to recover time lost due to COVID19 impacts.  The website shows the current 
schedule plus the interactive map for 20/21 works.  Now moving towards the final year 
(21/22) of the additional investment period.

 Street lighting – Skanska sale to M Group now confirmed - will involve a novation of the 
street lighting contract – more detail to follow as it becomes available.

 Highways Skills Academy – work continues to support apprenticeships across 
Gloucestershire Highways with those already in place (over 15).  The team are now also 
developing work on the possibility of delivering traineeships through the Skills Academy. 
Despite the difficulties in recruiting and training of new staff under pandemic restrictions the 
Skills Academy has managed to achieve its target of bringing eight more new apprentices 
into the business across GCC, Ringway and Atkins.

2.4 Highways Delivery
 Winter/emergency – significant emergency response over the Christmas period with 

flooding incidents, Storm Bella and snow affecting the county.  A seasonal peak in reported 
potholes and safety defects is now occurring but performance on repair times and levels 
remains satisfactory and additional gangs have been deployed to the network.  

 Depots/property – 20/21 funding from MTFS for land acquisition for replacement depot, 
additional MTFS bid for works to Cirencester Depot where structural failure of outer building 
has occurred.  Likely to be delayed because of response to COVID19.

 Ash die back programme – works proceeding well to fully utilise the £0.5m funding on 
addressing ash die back in 20/21.  Significant tree removal works now being undertaken in 
target areas, and work progressing on the parallel works for replacement trees which will be 
aligned with the wider Council strategy for tree planting.  A tree planting strategy for the 
replacement of those felled has been agreed where two trees will be planted for each one 
felled.  Plans being made to enable the proactive work on removing diseased ash trees to 
continue in 21/22.

2.5 A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse)
 Works are substantially complete.  We continue to review the scheme with local 

stakeholders alongside the post works evaluation that we undertake for all major projects.  

2.6 A38 Canal Bridges, Whitminster
 Works are largely complete, and following completion of the roundabout works, further 

works to connect the canal either side will be progressed.
 Cotswold Canal Trust and Stroud District Council successful in lottery bid for £8.9m, 4.5 

miles of canal, (opening Thrupp through to Sharpness canal at Saul Junction).  The funding 
also includes the creation of 21 hectares of biodiversity land, planting 30,000 trees and 
shrubs, generating additional spending of £5.5 million per year in the local economy, 

Page 76



bringing health benefits estimated at £8 million a year, preserving the canal archives from 
the 1730s and involving up to 500 extra volunteers. GCC are a partner in its delivery.

2.7 West Cheltenham / Cyber £22M
 Following December 2018 Cabinet approval, Outline Business Cases for all phases of the 

scheme have been drawn up; business Cases for Phases 1 & 2 were submitted, presented 
and agreed at the LEP Board on 10th December 2019; business Cases for Phases 3 & 4 
were submitted, presented and agreed at the LEP Board on 9th June 2020;

 Work started on site for Phases 1 and 2 in June 2020 and works are currently on schedule 
to be completed by Summer 2021.

 The Phase 3 and 4 Design and Build contract started in January 2021 and is due to be 
complete by the end of 2021.  A contractor share event is planned for February 2021.

 Highways England’s safety critical works at Staverton Bridge and M5 Junction 11 are 
underway with Arle Court forming part of the M5J11 diversion route, whilst this has resulted 
in an increase in stakeholder contact there has been no impact on the Phase 1 & 2 works 
programme, largely due to reduced traffic volumes during covid restrictions.

2.8 Ashchurch Bridge over Rail (Delivery for Tewkesbury Borough Council)
    Planning permission for the bridge has been submitted. The latest update is that this will 

now go on the agenda for the March planning Committee.  
    Works continue with Tewkesbury Borough Council and Network Rail to understand the 

complexities of the legal agreements required for the construction phase.
    Detailed design continues (Atkins).

3.0 Community & Infrastructure 

3.1 DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund 
 London Road cycle route: Detailed design is underway for 140m of cycle lanes between 

Tesco and Great Western Road (past the Nepalese Chef). Consultation is underway on 
footway improvements including a raised table crossing on Claremont Road at its junction 
with London Road. This will help pedestrians and enable shop deliveries to take place off 
the main road, keeping the cycle lanes clear.

 Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 (B4063 Chelt-Glos cycle route): Public consultation has 
started on proposals for an off road segregated scheme between Arle Court (Cheltenham) 
and Elmbridge Court (Gloucester) via Staverton and Churchdown. The response rate to 
date has been high.

3.2 ITU Public Transport and School Transport
 Following the government’s announcement that schools and colleges will return on Monday 

8 March officers have been working with schools, colleges and bus operators to ensure that 
sufficient capacity is in place for entitled pupils to travel to school. In recent weeks the ITU 
has also been assisting transport operators with implementing additional testing and 
vaccination for their staff who work closely with vulnerable people.

 GWR has given assurances that all key school and college rail services will be operating 
from this date. Over the last year, GWR have worked closely with colleges and schools to 
map these services. Many are already running, but where they are not, GWR will have 
them reinstated in time to support students, pupils and returning staff.

 As restrictions ease over the course of the coming months and more passengers return to 
the railway, GWR will continue to restore services to their timetable. 

3.3 Electric Vehicles 
 A cabinet member decision is planned for March to approve the ULEV Strategy and 

procurement of a provider to implement a countywide investment in EV charging points. 
These will primarily serve residents in areas where households lack private drives/garages 
which could be used charge vehicles overnight.

Page 77



3.4 School Streets
 Officers are evaluating feedback from a survey of School Streets pilots in Tewkesbury and in 

Warden Hill, Cheltenham. By making the changes under Experimental TRO legislation the 
council has flexibility to make modifications during the first 6 months.  A high number of 
responses were received from both school communities.

3.5 Sustainability
 The 2021/22 Council budget includes funding to support the decarbonisation of transport and 

to create in-house capacity to support the delivery of active travel, public transport, road safety 
and traffic management schemes.

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure

4.1 B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
 This project will need to link into the under construction GCC £22M transport improvement 

scheme to the west of Cheltenham. The original HE scheme, in order to fulfil funding 
criteria, needed to be completed by March 2020. This, however, was subsequently 
extended to construction starting in 2021, as part of the RIS2 process. Given the limited 
progress to date, the original date was increasingly impossible to adhere to.  GCC officers 
continue to engage with HE’s Route Manager to attempt to ensure everything is ‘joined up’. 
GCC officers have decided to take over the detailed design of this project, given the HE 
delays with the design fully underway and expected to be complete in Spring 2021. This will 
have the key advantage of directly linking the project to the emerging £22M West 
Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) providing a continuous link between 
Gloucester and Cheltenham Station once complete and include the recently successfully 
delivered Emergency Active Travel Scheme on London Road in Gloucester. A bid was 
recently submitted to the GFirst LEP for £5M towards this scheme. Despite scoring well, the 
scheme was not shortlisted by the LEP for funding. The GFirst LEP Board, in December 
2020 agreed that any future underspend on the £22M WCTIS would be ringfenced to the 
B4063 cycle scheme. Prior to this, in November 2020, £864k was secured from an EATF 
Tranche 2 bid from the Department for Transport, which will part fund a section of the 
works. This settlement is currently being challenged. 

4.2 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme was submitted to the DfT 

in January 2020;
 Positive Government announcement in March 2020, stating that the scheme should 

progress to the next stage;
 This is to progress to the Outline Business Case – the cost of which is likely to be £2M-£3M 

– part of the funding will come from the approved £4M GCC funding for ‘business case 
development’ in 2020/21;

 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and Tewkesbury 
BC due to the links to the ‘garden town’. 

4.3 Improved rail connectivity
 Rail Strategy published March 2020;
 This will now feed into the emerging review of the Local Transport Plan (LTP), which was 

approved at Cabinet on 27th January 2021, prior to proposed adoption at Full Council on 
17th March 2021. 

4.4 Digital connectivity
 Cabinet considered and approved the latest, revised Fastershire Broadband Strategy 2019-

2022 in December 2019;
 This is now being implemented, with a view to securing solutions for ‘the final 3%’. 

Page 78



4.5 A417 Missing Link
 Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) made March 2019;
 Further public consultation took place in Autumn 2019;
 A supportive officer-level response to this consultation (a joint response from CDC, TBC 

and GCC) was sent on 8th November 2019;
 Positive announcement in March 2020 stating that the scheme has secured funding and 

should progress to DCO later this year;
 Various issues, including National Trust (NT) withdrawing their support for some aspects of 

the scheme, have resulted in a need for the scheme to be redesigned. This will lead to a 
delay of 8-12 months to the scheme’s timetable. The Leader has taken this up with NT. 

 The revised proposals were subject to a public consultation, which started on 12th October 
2020. A detailed GCC officer response was sent, meeting the external deadline of 12th 
November 2020. 

4.6 GSWB / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission granted April 2019;
 Ongoing negotiations with landowners / landlords re- 14 plots; contract now agreed with 

City Business Centre, work progressing well in relocation for businesses within this site
 Planning application in with GCC for change of use (part of City Business Centre to become 

car park for displaced parking)
 The ‘virtual’ CPO Public Inquiry took place on 24th November 2020 – 2 objectors remain. 

Neither of which were represented at the Inquiry.  The DfT’s target date for a decision 
remains as the 13th April 2021.

 Advance preparatory works are scheduled to commence during the week commencing 1st 
March at Llanthony Priory, signage will be in place to highlight the start of preparatory 
works and a press release is in the process of being drafted

 Arrangements are being made to prepare tender documents for the City Business Centre 
demolition contract

4.7 Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 Adopted in 2016;
 Currently being reviewed;
 Public consultation took place 16th January – 26th March 2020;
 GCC Cabinet approved the revised LTP on 27th January 2021, before proposed adoption at 

Full Council on 17th March 2021.

4.8 Minerals Local Plan
 The Plan has now been adopted. 

4.9 Chepstow Transport Improvements
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options;
 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress the Business Case;
 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K (2020/21) 

towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study.  

4.10 Cinderford 
 FoDDC yet to secure planning permission and funding for proposed extension of phase one 

of the road;
 FoDDC aiming to apply to themselves (via a Section 73 amendment) to vary the existing 

planning permission later in 2020/21;
 Until planning and funding is in place, no further action for GCC. 

4.11 Local Plans / JCS / CIL
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which ended 

in January 2019;

Page 79



 GCC’s signing of the JCS Partnership Agreement has now been paused and it currently 
depends on the outcome of the JCS CIL review (see below);

 There was agreement with JCS officers in October 2019 that there should be an immediate 
review of the JCS CIL. GCC had agreed to financially contribute £25K towards this and the 
review was progressing. Earlier this year, JCS officers informed GCC that this CIL review 
will be paused due to (i) CV-19 and (ii) lack of secured funding from the District Councils;

 GCC education and library contributions continue to be challenged and ‘declined’ by some 
District Councils and developers. We have now failed to secure several millions of pounds 
worth of essential infrastructure;

 GCC continues to not receive a penny of CIL from any of the JCS authorities;
 That said, negotiations continue with some positive progress made and Lead Cabinet 

Members have been updated;
 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Significant officer-level concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the 
significant proposed development at Sharpness. Another SDC consultation took place with 
additional possible housing sites, which was responded to in December 2020.

 Cotswold Local Plan – Adopted in August 2018;
 Forest of Dean Local Plan – Issues and Options consultation ended on 31st October 2019. 

FoDDC recently consulted on a ‘preferred option’ – the closing date for comments was 29th 
January 2021. GCC officers commented before this deadline. 

5.0 Libraries & Registration

5.1 Libraries
 Libraries continue to offer click & collect services and limited PC use.  If conditions allow 

libraries will be permitted to re-open for browsing no earlier than 12th April.  Plans are in 
place for re-introducing browsing.

 Following agreement at full Council to fund the rollout of Innovation Labs an initial meeting 
is set up to create a project plan and finalise locations of the new labs.

5.2 Registration 
 The UK Government’s routemap has given detail around wedding and civil partnership 

ceremonies with restrictions easing and numbers increasing through to 21st June 2021.  
 The regulations were laid before Parliament on 22nd February 2021 to introduce the 

Marriage Schedule System.  This would make the legal record electronic rather than the 
current paper registers and makes changes to who can be recorded on a marriage 
certificate.  Whilst this is a welcome step it will mean that processes and procedures within 
Gloucestershire Registration Service need to be changed, which will be very time intensive 
whilst the service is dealing with backlogs and increased wedding ceremonies..  It is 
anticipated that the new system will be in place from 4th May 2021.

6.0 Waste Management 

 Waiting times for an appointment to visit a Household Recycling Centre (HRC) remain low, 
but there may be some increased demand as the weather begins to warm up and the 
country’s route out of lockdown begins to take shape. Waiting times remain longest at Pyke 
Quarry:

Site Waiting time 18th Jan 21 Waiting time at 23rd Feb 21
Fosse Cross 2 days 2 days
Hempsted 5 days 6 days
Oak Quarry 1 day 2 days
Pyke Quarry 11 days 13 days
Wingmoor 1 day 2 days

Page 80



 The HRCs will move to their summer opening hours of 9am until 5pm on 28th March. This 
will increase daily opening hours by 2 hours per day. Sites are open six days per week.

 Evaluation of bids for the council’s Food Waste Treatment Contract has been completed 
and a contract award offer will be made in the first week of March. New contract 
arrangements need to be in place by 1st October 2021. 

 General and healthcare waste management arrangements for the Covid-19 mass testing 
sites at the Friendship café in Gloucester and at the Royal Agricultural College, Cirencester 
have been set up and are operating smoothly. Plans are also in place to support the site 
opening in Cinderford on 17th March. As a fall-back, agreement has been reached with the 
Environment Agency that the healthcare wastes associated with lateral flow device testing 
can be treated at the Gloucestershire Energy from Waste facility if necessary. This is in 
response to known capacity issues within the clinical/healthcare waste market at present.

 A report will be considered by Cabinet in March to seek authorisation to reprocure contracts 
for the off-take of (the twenty plus) materials collected and recycled at HRCs. The new 
agreements will commence 1st September 2021.

 Work is underway on the development of a new contract for the management of the HRC 
service with Ubico. Cabinet agreed in July 2020 to award a new five plus two year contract 
to Ubico without further competition. The new agreement will take effect from 1st September 
2021.

 Work has commenced with district council partners on the development of a new 
Resources and Waste Strategy for Gloucestershire. The Gloucestershire Resources and 
Waste Partnership hopes to conduct a public consultation exercise on strategy options in 
the autumn of 2021.

7.0 Employment and Skills 

7.1 Adult Education Service
 AES’s contribution to the local skills support for economic recovery has been completed 

and has been shared with the GAB and stakeholders in October. This should help raise the 
profile of GCC Adult Education and also stimulate further discussion and provision with 
District Councils, community groups, etc. and helps with further collaboration over the use 
of Adult Education Budget (AEB) with local colleges. This is a live document that we will 
continue to update based on local skills need, LMI and claimant count. 

 Since the implementation of the new staffing structure (commenced 1st September), good 
progress is being made with staff being embedded into new roles. The transition from old to 
new is progressing very well despite Covid-19 related challenges. An internal full review of 
our current processes and procedures is underway to enable the Service to continue 
making improvements (streamlining, efficiency gains and cost savings). Full impact of the 
changes will not be shown from a working point of view until full service is up and running 
post Covid restrictions but so far staff are embracing the process well.

 Online learning remains in place for community learning, skills and apprenticeship 
provision. It is likely that longer-term the Service will retain more of a blended learning 
approach combining online and face-to-face learning, although this remains challenging 
with Community learning, we continued through the second and current lockdown to 
provide face to face learning to those most vulnerable and facing digital poverty, which has 
seen all classes at capacity with 6 learners (socially distanced). 

 Performance 2nd Quarter (Learner enrolments, Income from ESFA, Exam passes, 
Retention Rates, etc.) remain strong in most areas despite Covid-19 related challenges. 
New HOS has reviewed all plans and is confident that forecasts are achievable and 
accurate at this time.

 Since the return (enabling a combination of office-based and home working each week for 
staff through ‘split working rota bubbles’), motivation and morale has significantly improved. 
Some staff remain working solely from home.

 Subcontractors’ bids have now been finalised and verbally accepted, call off agreements 
have now been sent to each provider for signing.

Page 81



 AES are currently at a low risk with regards to any shortages of staff (capacity and Covid-19 
based). This is monitored on a daily basis including a monthly review meeting between 
senior staff in AES.

 Plans to gradually open the centre up for more face to face delivery are being put into 
action following the latest update from Boris Johnson and strictly following the government 
Covid regulations.

- REPORT END - 

Page 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	5 Work Plan
	20.1.21 - final

	4 Work Plan
	7 Update on the skills agenda
	Action Plan for Employment and Skills v5 Feb 2021 GSAP

	8 Review of Growth Hub service
	Growth Hub Update March 2021 v2.1

	9 Executive Director's Report

